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L etter to the Minister

Parliament House
Macquarie Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

The Hon Gladys Berejiklian MP
Minister for Industrial Relations

Dear Minister

In accordance with the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984, 1 submit for your
information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report for the Long Service

Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.
Sincerely,

.

Rob Whitfield
Chief Executive Officer
31st October 2016

LSC Annual Report 2015-16

3



Contents

Letter to the Minister
About Us
Our Stakeholders
Our Functions and Services
Corporate Plan 2015/2016
Chief Executive Officer's Report
Principal Officers
Organisational Structure
Director’'s Report
Building and Construction Industry Committee
Contract Cleaning Industry Committee
Good Governance
Insurance
Audit and Risk Management
Report from the Audit and Risk Committee
Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement

Digital Information Security Policy (DISP) Compliance Attestation for the 2015/2016
Financial Year

Financial Performance Summary
Financial Statements
Long Service Corporation
Long Service Corporation Investment Fund

Appendices

LSC Annual Report 2015-16

03

05

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

14

16

16

16

17

19

20

21

24

25

63

88

4



About Us

Established in 1982 to administer the Building and Construction Industry Long Service
Payments Act 1986 the Corporation provides a portable long service payments scheme to
building and construction workers in NSW.

With the introduction of the Long Service Corporation Act 2010 and the Contract Cleaning
Industry (Portable Long Service Scheme Leave) Act 2010, the Corporation’s name changed from
the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Corporation to the Long
Service Corporation.

As at 30 June 2016 the Long Service Corporation provides portable long service schemes to
approximately 332,615 active workers and 29,943 active employers in the building and
construction industry and 59,426 active workers and 777 active employers in the contract
cleaning industries.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Long Service Corporation has a diverse range of stakeholders in the building and
construction industry and the contract cleaning industry. The Corporation engages with the
New South Wales community, government, employers, workers and third parties. The
Corporation monitors its engagement through a stakeholder engagement model program,
customer satisfaction surveys and feedback.

Stakeholders Key Issues

NSW Community » Levy Payers: Levy payment of 0.35% on all building and
construction work $25,000 and above; and 1.7% of ordinary

(Levy payers and general wages for the contract cleaning scheme

community) » General Community: Information about levy rate and why we
have it.

Workers » Workers: membership, recording service, claiming
entitlements; other scheme related information and advice

(Workers, self employed workers, » Self employed workers: registration, recording service,

trade unions) claiming entitlements, information and advice

» Trade Unions: worker advocacy, scheme coverage, scheme
entitlements and Industry Committee membership.

Employers > Employers: Responsibilities under the Acts; registration,
lodging worker service, returns, claiming entitlements,

(Employers, employer compliance, levy payment plans/queries

groups/industry associations) » Employer Groups: Employer advocacy, scheme coverage,
scheme entitlements and Industry Committee membership.

Third Parties » Private Certifiers: regulation, policy and payment
arrangements within the building and construction scheme

(Private Certifiers, Suppliers, » Suppliers: policy, procedures and payment arrangements

Interstate schemes, Tax Agents) > Interstate Schemes: National Reciprocal Agreement (NRA),

national cooperation initiatives
» Tax Agents: submitting returns for self employed workers in
the building and construction scheme.

Government » Local Government Councils: Levy collection agent, scheme

information for the building and construction scheme
(Local Government Councils, » Government Agencies contracting work in both industries:
Government agencies) Responsibilities under the Acts.
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Our Functions and Services

OUR FUNCTIONS

» Ensuring industry workers are registered in the scheme and recording service.

» Ensuring industry employers are aware of their obligations and complying with the
scheme.

» Collecting the long service levy and managing the fund.

» Paying claims to workers and employers.

» Marketing the scheme to the participating NSW industries.

OUR SERVICES

The Services provided by the Corporation include:

» Helpline operating from 8:30am - 5:00pm Monday to Friday;

» Interpreter services offering support to our many workers and employers from non-
English speaking backgrounds;

» Face to face customer service from our office located at Gosford;

» Field advisory services — inspectors are available to do site and office visits to employers
to explain long service obligations, benefits and coverage queries;

» Presentations at industry events including trade evenings or association meetings;

» Advisory service to other industry stakeholders such as accountancy firms;

» Provision of an electronic return for councils.

OUR VALUES

Our staff work within a framework of clear values:
» Be professional

» Show respect

» Earn trust

» Be honest

» Be fair

OUR VISION

To increase involvement and retention of workers in participating NSW industries by
providing portable Long Service entitlements.

OUR MISSION

Leverage technology to deliver user-friendly and effective portable long service schemes.

‘User Friendly’ is defined in relation to LSC customers and the nature of the service being one
touch and self service (online) thus improving the customer experience.

‘Effective’ is defined in relation to services being fit for purpose, of high quality (right first time)
and time efficient.
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Corporate Plan 2015/2016
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Chief Executive Officer's Report

[ was delighted to complete my first full year in the role of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of
Long Service Corporation (LSC). I am pleased to report that the Corporation has made a
number of significant improvements across key areas of its business over the past year.

People engagement was a key focus during the year with a number of workshops and training
events conducted including an all team Positive Organisation seminar in May 2016.
Revitalising the LSC culture and driving engagement is integral to Treasury Goal One - being
sought after for the quality of our people and our advice.

The Long Service Corporation continues to benefit from the establishment of its own
Investment Fund within TCorp, now valued at just under $1.1 billion. The Corporation
recorded a surplus of $48.2 million for the financial year and continues to strengthen its
financial position with equity now at $241.6 million.

The LSC Investment Fund return of 2.7 per cent or $28.8 million was slightly below bench
mark of three per cent. Levy revenue increased by 14.6 per cent to $165.6 million, and was
offset by an increase in total expenses of 11.5 per cent to $147.8 million.

Improvements to the LSC website and the use of social media and other electronic
communication methods have resulted in better engagement with our customers. This has led
to service improvements such as a significant decrease in missing service requests from
workers, improved employer compliance rates and more accurate registration information.
User surveys of the new worker portal launched in September 2015 show a 58 percent
customer satisfaction rate with how easy the portal is to use. We will continue to work on
improving customer experience with our services.

[ would like to thank members of both the Building and Construction and Contract Cleaning
Industry Committees for their contribution to the Corporation’s business. [ would also thank
the LSC team for their continued commitment and drive to provide excellent service to our
customers and stakeholders.

We are excited to announce the appointment of Kathy Skuta as the new Director of LSC from
1 August 2016. Kathy is a respected leader and strategist working most recently within
Treasury’s Commercial Group. Kathy brings a strong commitment to improving customer

service and working collaboratively with our stakeholders. Under Kathy’s direction I'm
confident LSC will deliver great outcomes for our customers.

Rob Whitfield

L

Chief Executive Officer
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Principal Officers (at 30 June 2016)

Rob Whitfield

BCom, Grad Dip Banking, Grad Dip Fin
Secretary

NSW Treasury

Chief Executive Officer

Long Service Corporation

Vicki Telfer

BSc, DipEd, MPA, MALP, MAICD
Executive Director

NSW Industrial Relations

Scott Warr !
BA, MMGT
Director

Sam Sooialo ?
BIT, C Mgr, MBA
Deputy Director

Eric Hartge
McomPA, FIPA
Financial Controller

Paul Stalling
Dip Financial Markets, Dip Project Management
Manager Strategy, Policy and Planning

Monica Hu
HDipSA, MBA, MIS, MACS (Snr) CP
Business Systems Manager

1 Position amended to Senior Executive Band 1 from 1 August 2016 under Government Sector Employment Act 2013.

Scott Warr vacated position on 29 July 2016. Position filled by new incumbent Kathy Skuta BCommerce (Hons), MA Economics

from 1 August 2016.

2 Position deleted 15 July 2016

LSC Annual Report 2015-16

9



Organisational Structure

MINISTER FOR INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (SECRETARY OF NSW TREASURY)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

DIRECTOR LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

DEPUTY DIRECTOR/ FINANCIAL
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER CONTROLLER

CUSTOMER SERVICES OPERATIONS
COORDINATION

SERVICE UPDATES

REGISTER AND LEVIES LEVIES

REGISTER 1

COMPLIANCE

MARKETING

BUSINESS

STRATEGY & POLICY

CLAIMS

REGISTER 2
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Director’'s Report

In the 2015/2016 financial year, under the stewardship of Scott Warr our former Director, the
Corporation continued to administer both the Building and Construction Industry Long Service
Payments Act 1986 and the Contract Cleaning Industry (Portable Long Service Leave Scheme)
Act 2010 to an excellent standard. Whilst meeting its statutory obligations, the Corporation
focused on consolidating the improvement in its financial position.

The Building and Construction Industry (BCI) scheme alone saw claim payments totalling
$73 million made to 11,179 workers or their representatives and $156 million in levies being
collected. The Contract Cleaning Industry (CCI) scheme had $10 million in levy collected this
year and 253 claim payments valued at $341,000. Staff responded to approximately 113,000
enquiries.

Highlights

An increase in levy revenue is a result of continued growth in the building and construction
industry of which $6.7 million is attributable to the Corporation’s compliance activities.

Progress has been made in relation to transitioning activities from paper to online. The
collection of email addresses was a crucial component of this as a driver to this reform. Since
the last financial year, we have increased the number of member email addresses by 151 per
cent and now have nearly 90,000 email addresses on the database.

The Corporation’s New Integrated Leave System (NILS) and Government Data Centre (GovDC)
information technology projects commenced in earnest. Requests for tender were released
for;
e Stage One of NILS - the replacement of the Corporation’s finance system with
Microsoft Dynamics AX7
e The NSW GovDC project to move the Corporation’s IT infrastructure and systems out

from the Department of Finance, Services and Innovation data centre into a purpose-
built centralised NSW Government data centre.

Once contracts are signed, work will commence for both projects in the coming year.

I would like to thank Scott Warr for his considerable contribution to the achievements of the
Corporation. The new financial year brings with it many challenges and opportunities for the
Corporation to build on the good work and excellent achievements of 2015/2016. I look
forward to working in collaboration with our industry and other business partners to deliver
improved services to workers and employers.

P

Kathy Skuta
Director
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The Building and Construction Industry
Long Service Payments Committee

(Referred to as Industry Committee)

The Industry Committee is constituted under
the Building and Construction Industry Long
Service Payments Act 1986. It is an advisory
and appellate body, consisting of ten part-
time members appointed by the Minister and
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. The
Industry Committee is empowered under
Section 9 of the Act to advise on
administration of the Act including matters
concerning publicity, the investment of funds
and the rate of the long service levy.

The Industry Committee decides appeals

lodged against Corporation decisions to:

» Reject an application for registration in
the scheme made on behalf of or by
workers

» Cancel registrations of workers in the
scheme

» Refuse service credits to registered
workers

The Industry Committee also decides appeals

lodged by levy payers in respect of:

» An assessment made of the amount of a
long service levy due in respect of the
erection of a building

» A direction given, or refusal to give such
direction, in relation to interest payable on
a long service levy not paid before the due
date, or extension of time for payment of a
long service levy.

Apart from its legislated functions, the
Committee also acts as ‘Customer Council’ in
relation to customer service standards and
helps ensure the quality and effectiveness of
services meet customers’ needs.

This year the Industry Committee met on
three occasions.

During the year the Committee continued to
provide support and advice to the
Corporation regarding issues such as:

» Clarification of key definitions for Scheme
coverage

» The eligibility of Supervisors in the Scheme

» Scheme coverage of workers involved in the
manufacture of aluminium windows

> Potential future legislative changes

> The Corporation’s investment strategy.

Appeals

Sections 49-54 of the Act empower the
Industry Committee to determine appeals
lodged by workers, employers and levy payers
in respect of certain Corporation decisions.
Appeals are considered and determined on the
basis of documentary evidence submitted by
the parties involved.

There were no new appeals lodged by levy
payers in the 2015/2016 financial year
however one appeal held over from the
2014/2015 financial year was determined. No
appeals were lodged by employers.

The Committee heard and gave consideration
to 289 appeals lodged by workers, including a
number of appeals held over from the previous
financial year.
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BCI INDUSTRY COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Vicki Telfer
BSc, DipEd, MPA, MALP, MAICD

Executive Director NSW Industrial Relations
(NSWIR)

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

MEMBERS NOMINATED BY THE UNIONS NSW

Keryn McWhinney
Dip Ind Law

Senior Industrial Officer/Coordinator
Manager, Wage Claims Industrial Department
Construction Forestry Mining Energy Union
(CFMEU),

(Construction & General Division) NSW Branch

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

Paul Farrow

Aircraft Maintenance Engineer
National Organiser,
Australian Workers Union NSW

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

Robyn Fortescue
BA

Assistant State Secretary
Australian Manufacturing Workers Union
(AMWU)

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

MEMBERS DIRECTLY APPOINTED BY THE MINISTER

David Bare
BE (Mat.) Business Management Certificate
(General Management)

Executive Director,
NSW - Housing Industry Australia (HIA)

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

Melissa Adler
BCom, LLB

Executive Director Workplace Relations
Housing Industry Association (HIA)

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 3

MEMBERS DIRECTLY APPOINTED BY THE MINISTER
(CONT)

David Castledine
B. Eng, LL,B, GAICD

CEO
Civil Contractors Federation (CCF) NSW

Meeting attendance: 1 out of 3

Therese Lauriola
Dip Project Management

Chief Executive Officer
Master Painters Association (MPA)

Meeting attendance: 1 out of 3

MEMBERS NOMINATED JOINTLY BY THE MASTER
BUILDERS ASSOCIATION (MBA) OF NSW AND THE
AUSTRALIAN FEDERATION OF EMPLOYERS AND
INDUSTRIES (AFEI)

Brian Seidler
B.BUILD

Executive Director,
Master Builders Association of NSW (MBA)

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

Paula Thomson
B Law/Business

Senior Workplace Relations Consultant,
Australian Federation of Employers and
Industries (AFEI)

Associate Solicitor AFEI Legal

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3

Beverly Glover
Dip Management

Secretary Industrial Relations Department

Master Builders Association of NSW (MBA NSW)

Meeting attendance: 3 out of 3
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The Contract Cleaning Industry
Long Service Leave Committee

(Referred to as Industry Committee)

The Industry Committee is constituted under
the Contract Cleaning Industry (Portable Long
Service Leave Scheme) Act 2010. It is an
advisory and appellate body, consisting of
eight part-time members appointed by the
Minister and chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer. The Industry Committee is
constituted under Section 9 of the Act and is
empowered to determine appeals under
S77-84 of the Act.

The Industry Committee decides appeals
lodged by workers against Corporation
decisions to:

» Reject an application for registration in
the scheme made on behalf of or by
workers

» Cancel registrations of workers in the
scheme

» Apply a limitation to the minimum and
maximum rates of pay used to claim

The Industry Committee also decides appeals
lodged by employers against Corporation
decisions to:

» Reject an application for registration in
the scheme by an employer

» Cancel registration of employers in the
scheme

» Refuse or reject an application to register
a worker

» Refuse to grant an exemption or
revocation of an exemption from lodging a
return

» Refuse to grant an extension of time to
pay a levy

> Refuse to waive or reduce interest on
unpaid levies

» Make an assessment on an unpaid levy.

Apart from its legislated functions, the
Committee also acts as ‘Customer Council’ in
relation to customer service standards and
helps ensure the quality and effectiveness of
services meet customers’ needs.

This year the Industry Committee met on two
occasions.

During the year the Committee continued to
provide support and advice to the
Corporation regarding issues such as:

» Increasing the capacity for availability of
information to workers and employers of
non English speaking backgrounds

» Conducting benchmarking of like schemes
at the five year fund establishment mark
to compare both employer and worker
statistics

» Workers reaching the four year gap
period

» Developing and supporting the Cleaning
Accountability Framework certification
process. This Framework establishes good
standards within the industry

» Ensuring the process for payment of
worker claims is viable and compliant

» Legislative review.

Appeals

Sections 77-84 of the Contract Cleaning
Industry (Portable Long Service Leave Scheme)
Act 2010 empowers the Contract Cleaning
Industry Long Service Leave Committee to
determine appeals lodged by workers and
employers in respect of certain Corporation
decisions. Appeals are considered and
determined on the basis of documented
evidence submitted by the parties involved.

There were no appeals lodged this financial
year.
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CCI INDUSTRY COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Vicki Telfer
BSc, DipEd, MPA, MALP, MAICD

Executive Director NSW Industrial Relations
(NSWIR)

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

MEMBERS NOMINATED BY THE UNIONS NSW

Emma Maiden
BA Economics, Dip Law

Assistant Secretary Unions NSW

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

Georgia Potter-Butler
LLB/BA Barrister and Solicitor NZ

Industrial Officer, Unions NSW

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

MEMBERS NOMINATED BY UNITED VOICE
Mark Boyd

Secretary,
Unions NSW

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

Mel Gatfield
BA Industrial Relations/Political Science

Branch Secretary

Meeting attendance: 1 out of 2

MEMBERS NOMINATED BY THE BUILDING SERVICE
CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION OF AUSTRALIA
(BSCAA)

Ravindra Naidoo
BA (Hons) Economics, CPA

Financial Controller Quad Services,

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

Barbara Connolly
BA

Executive Director BSCAA, NSW Division
National Officer BSCAA Ltd

Meeting attendance: 2 out of 2

MEMBERS NOMINATED BY THE AUSTRALIAN
CLEANING CONTRACTORS’ ALLIANCE (ACCA)

John Laws
Cert IV Assessment, Cert IV Finance
Broking, Cert Personnel Administration

Executive Director ACCA,
Registered Contract Cleaning Manager

Meeting attendance: 1 out of 2

Natalie Stephens

General Manager Procare Property Services
Pty Ltd,
Vice President ACCA

Meeting attendance: 1 out of 2
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Good Governance

INSURANCE

The Long Service Corporation has insurance in place to cover all its assets and major risks. Its
insurance policies include workers compensation, building contents (including office
equipment), motor vehicles and public liability. These policies are with the NSW
Government’s self-insurance scheme, the Treasury Managed Fund.

To minimise the likelihood and impact of workplace injury, the Corporation’s workers
compensation risks are actively managed with pre-emptive workplace inspections, early
intervention and a Work Health & Safety Committee. The Treasury Managed Fund Premium
Incentive Scheme encourages effective risk management. Agencies that manage risk will
receive lower premiums, while those with poor risk management are penalised.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)

The Corporation has its own independent Audit and Risk Committee comprising of a Chair
and two Members. The Committee met regularly to monitor identified risks and oversee
audits and reviews of the activities of the Corporation.

For further detail please refer to the Report from the Audit and Risk Committee on page 17.

Business Continuity Management and Planning (BCM and BCP)

During the course of the year, the Corporation updated its BCP plan to be included as part of
Treasury’s new BCP framework, which will improve its readiness in the event of a disruptive
incident. In May 2016, the Corporation’s BCP was assessed against the International
Organisation for Standardisation 1SO22301:2012 - Business Continuity Management by an
external business continuity expert to identify any gaps. The Corporation’s business
continuity management system as part of the overarching Treasury’s BCM system received no
low scores.

Compliance, Risk, Assurance Management System

In April 2016, Treasury implemented the PROTECHT ERM compliance, risk, assurance
management software system (CRAMS). The system integrates Treasury’s and the
Corporation’s compliance, risk and assurance frameworks and automates the reporting and
approval processes. CRAMS will also provide a standardised mechanism for analysing and
reporting risks across the Corporation. The new system includes an automated internal audit
issue tracker; gifts and benefits register and private/conflict of interest’s disclosures register -
replacing the current manually compiled systems. It also has capacity to distribute, compile
and report on the Corporation’s new compliance framework’s obligations’ attestation process.

Risk Assessment

Risk workshops were conducted with the management team to identify and assess the
Corporation’s strategic and operational risks and controls. In addition, risk workshops have
been conducted as part of the NILS and Gov DC information technology projects’ governance
arrangements.
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Report from the Audit & Risk Committee

Dear Secretary

In compliance with TPP 15-03, the Audit and Risk Committee of the NSW Long Service Corporation
(LSC) aims to:

o assess risks arising from the operations of LSC and the adequacy of measures in place to
control those risks

e liaise with external audit
o assure the integrity of LSC’s external financial reporting and internal management reporting

e oversee the internal audit function, risk management, corporate governance, and other
internal assurance processes that operate within LSC.

LSC’s Audit & Risk Committee, which first met in September 2013, continued its operations without
any personnel change throughout 2015-16. It reports to the Chief Executive Officer of LSC, which
position is held by the Secretary, Treasury.

Committee Membership
The Committee is constituted in compliance with NSW policy TPP 15-03.
Current membership:

e Victor Lewis (independent Chair from July 2013)
L ]

Felicity Barr (independent member from July 2013. Term extended in February 2015 to 31
July 2019)

e Neal O'Callaghan (independent member from July 2013)

Committee Meetings

The Committee met on six occasions during 2015-16. Member attendance was excellent, with all
members attending all meetings. During the course of the year the Committee monitored matters
including:

e The ongoing process of implementing of the New Integrated Leave System (NILS)

e LSC’s movement away from its shared service provider (Safety & Return to Work Services)
which included moving payroll in-house and the ongoing process of data migration to the
Government Data Centre

e Development of the LSC Corporate Plan for 2015-2018

o LSC'’s financial statements for 2014-15 and its early close statements for 2015-16

e Issues and risks arising in the development of the 2014-15 financial statements

o Data security and data cleansing issues preparatory to the Corporation’s move to a new
information and knowledge management system (NILS) in 2016-17

e Reviews and recommendations concerning LSC investment strategy, the rate of the Long
Service Levy and the viability of the Fund.

Internal Audit Program

The Committee oversees audits and reviews of the activities of the Long Service Corporation, as
scheduled in the annual internal audit plan. The areas to be audited are determined based on
exposure to potential strategic or operating risks.

The following reports on internal audits and reviews were reviewed by the Committee and
commended to the Secretary in 2015-16:

11a ARC Annual Report to CEO 2015-16.docx
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e Fraud Risk and Corruption Control Review

o LSC IT Security Phase 2 Penetration Test Report

e Follow-up Audit on Agreed Recommendations from Previous Internal Audits
e Review of the LSC Payroll

e Review of transitional projects, including data transition from WorkCover to GovDC, LSC
move to Treasury HR and Lidcombe office move to Parramatta.

The following audits were completed and awaiting management for responses as at 30 June 2016:

e BCl and CCI claims process review.

At each meeting the Committee monitors the appropriateness and timeliness of management
responses to completed internal audits and reviews, and to Audit Office management letters.

Progress in Addressing the Recommendations Made in Internal Audit Reports and in External
Audit’s Management Letters

Progress against these recommendations is examined at every meeting, and audited at the end of the
financial year. The Committee may seek interim updates on any risk or identified gap of special
concern.

As at 30 June 2016, there were 51 Internal Audit recommendations still waiting to be finalised. 3 of

these have a High risk rating, 5 have a Significant rating and the rest are rated Moderate or Low or
are not rated.

From the AO 2014-15 Management Letter, 5 recommendations were still open at 30 June 2016. All
of these were rated Moderate, Low or not rated. There is a further AO recommendation in relation to
an independent review of LSC's compliance with the NSW Government's disaster recovery
requirements, which is not rated.

In addition to the above, there are 7 recommendations from private contractors which are rated as
Moderate, Low or not rated.

Victor Lewis
Independent Chair
Long Service Corporation Audit and Risk Committee

11a ARC Annual Report to CEO 2015-16.docx
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Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement for the
2015-2016 Financial Year for Long Service Corporation (LSC)

I, Robert Whitfield am of the opinion that the LSC has internal audit and risk management
processes in operation that are compliant with the eight core requirements set out in the Internal
Audit and Risk Management Policy for the NSW Public Sector, specifically:

Core Requirements For each requirement,
please specify whether

compliant, non-compliant, or

in transition

Risk Management Framework

1.1 The agency head is ultimately responsible and accountable for risk Compliant
management in the agency

1:2 A risk management framework that is appropriate to the agency has been Compliant
established and maintained and the framework is consistent with AS/NZS ISO
31000:2009

Internal Audit Function

2.1 An internal audit function has been established and maintained Compliant

2.2 The operation of the internal audit function is consistent with the International =~ Compliant
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing

2.3 The agency has an Internal Audit Charter that is consistent with the content of = Compliant
the ‘model charter’

Audit and Risk Committee

3.1 An independent Audit and Risk Committee with appropriate expertise has Compliant
been established

3.2 The Audit and Risk Committee is an advisory committee providing assistance Compliant
to the agency head on the agency’s governance processes, risk management
and control frameworks, and its external accountability obligations

3.3 The Audit and Risk Committee has a Charter that is consistent with the content Compliant
of the *‘model charter’

Membership
The chair and members of the Audit and Risk Committee are:

* Independent Chair, Victor Lewis, appointed July 2013 to 30 June 2017,

e Independent member Felicity Barr, appointed July 2013, extended in February 2015 to 31 July
2019

* Independent member Neal O’Callaghan, appointed July 2013, extended in July 2016 to 1
August, 2020

RoBert Whitfield—

Chief Executive Officer
Date: 23 August 2016

Vifginia Tinson Aman Chand
Director of Risk Chief Audit Executive
Telephone: 02 9228 3783 Telephone: 02 9228 3621

TPP15-03 Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy for the NSW Public Sector
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DIGITAL INFORMATION SECURITY POLICY (DISP) COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION
STATEMENT FORTHE 2015 - 2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

DIGITAL INFORMATION SECURITY POLICY (DISP) COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION
STATEMENT FOR THE 2015 - 2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

I, Rob Whitfield, am of the opinion that the Long Service Corporation had an Information
Security Management System (ISMS) in place during the 2015-2016 financial year that is
consistent with the Core Requirements set out in the NSW Government Digital Information
Security Policy.

Risks to the digital information and digital information systems of the Long Service
Corporation have been assessed against the ISMS being developed in accordance with the
NSW Government Digital Information Security Policy.

The controls in place to mitigate identified risks to the digital information and digital
information systems of the Long Service Corporation are adequate, subject to deficient
password controls on one of the organisation’s web applications, identified by an independent
assessment. Actions to strengthen password controls have subsequently been completed.

L

Rob Whitfield
Chief Executive Officer
Long Service Corporation
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

REVENUE AND EXPENSES

During the financial year, revenue from all sources amounted to $196.0 million, whilst expenditure

amounted to $147.8 million. This resulted in a net result of $48.2 million.

The actual net result was greater than budget by $26.8 million, primarily due to the following:

» Decreased return on TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities, including LSCIFT

» Increased collection of levies from both Schemes
» Decreased Finance Cost due to changes in discount rate
+ Decreased Finance Cost due to unwinding of discount rate

« Decreased Long Service expense

* Increased Personnel services expenses
* Increase in Consulting and Contractor expenses

* Increased other expenses

BUDGET FORECAST AND RESULT

Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
Personnel services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
TOTAL EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

Revenue

Investment revenue

Retained taxes, fees and fines
Other revenue

Total Revenue

NET RESULT

$'000
(40,356)
54,020
1,056
17,276
(4,511)
(677)
48
26,760
Actual Budget Budget
2015/2016 2015/2016 2016/2017
$'000 $'000 $'000
11,992 7,481 7,606
74,869 91,827 105,551
152 165 175
60,781 61,837 60,137
147,794 161,310 173,469
30,231 71,055 71,176
165,630 111,610 133,518
140 92 102
196,001 182,757 204,796
48,207 21,447 31,327
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
Personnel services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
TOTAL EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

Revenue

Investment revenue

Retained taxes, fees and fines
Other revenue

Total Revenue

Gain/(loss) on disposal

NET RESULT (DEFICIT)SURPLUS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12,448 3,370 6,779 7,514 11,992
82,362 126,646 66,623 68,151 74,869
641 226 224 233 152
61,211 (31,952) 53,416 56,684 60,781
156,662 98,290 127,042 132,582 147,794
(2,989) 121,652 97,659 94,436 30,231
80,193 110,883 121,374 144,498 165,630
2 18 87 112 140
77,206 232,553 219,120 239,046 196,001
4 - - 15 -
(79,452) 134,263 92,078 106,479 48,207

The principal assets continue to be investments of $1137.7 million in TCorp Long Term Growth Facility and the
principal liabilities are the estimates for the Provision for Scheme Liabilities of $927.1 million as assessed by
actuarial consultants. Equity improved significantly by $48.2 million from an accumulated funds of $193.4 million at
30 June 2015 to accumulated funds of $241.6 million as at 30 June 2016. Please refer to Note 15 to the Financial

Statements for details of significant non cash gains affecting this year's result.

INVESTMENTS

The Corporation invested its funds in the "Long Term Growth" Long Service Corporation Facilities Trust
administered by NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) utilising external managers under contract to TCorp.

The following table shows the movement in funds within these facilities and indicates the rate of return compared

with the benchmark return.

FUND CATEGORIES
Long term growth
Cash

TOTAL

BALANCE ON HAND INVESTMENT
AS AT PERFORMANCE
30 JUNE 30 JUNE
2015 2016 INCOME RETURN
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
999,078 1,137,719 28,778 2.70%
462 - 3 0.00%
999,540 1,137,719 28,781

BENCH
MARK

RETURN
%

3.00%
0.00%
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PERFORMANCE

Current
(within
due date)
Aged analysis at end of each quarter $'000
All suppliers
Sep-15 578,269
Dec-15 651,866
Mar-16 364,709
Jun-16 852,143
Small business suppliers
Sep-15 23,313
Dec-15 16,788
Mar-16 20,303
Jun-16 27,256

Less than
30 days
overdue
$'000

Between Between 61

30 and 60
days

overdue

$'000

and 90
days
overdue
$'000

More than
90 days
overdue
$'000

Note: Although Small business registration with the Corporation commenced in January 2012 in accordance with
NSWTC 11/12, payments have been tracked from July 2011. A small business is defined as an Australian or New
Zealand business with annual turnover of less than $2 Million dollars.

Accounts due or paid within each quarter
Measure
All suppliers
Number of accounts due for payment
Number of accounts paid on time
Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on number of accounts)
Dollar amount of accounts due for payment
Dollar amount of accounts paid on time
Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on $)
Number of payments for interest on overdue
accounts
Interest paid on overdue accounts
Small business suppliers
Number of accounts due for payment
Number of accounts paid on time
Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on number of accounts)
Dollar amount of accounts due for payment
Dollar amount of accounts paid on time
(based on $)

Number of payments for interest on overdue
accounts

Interest paid on overdue accounts

Commentary

Sep-15

195
195

100%
578,269
578,269

100%

Nil
Nil

42
42

100%
23,313
23,313

100%

Nil
Nil

Dec-15

197
197

100%
651,866
651,866

100%

Nil
Nil

35
35

100%
16,788
16,788

100%

Nil
Nil

Mar-16

208
208

100%
364,709
364,709

100%

Nil
Nil

28
28

100%
20,303
20,303

100%

Nil
Nil

Jun-16

281
281

100%
852,143
852,143

100%

Nil
Nil

34
34

100%
27,256
27,256

100%

Nil
Nil

The Corporation has a policy of payments to all suppliers within 14 days from receipt of a correctly rendered invoice.
This is better than the Government directive of 30 days per NSWTC11/12.

The Corporation has not been required to make interest payments to small business in the financial year.

LSC Annual Report 2015-16

23



Long Service Corporation
Financial Statements

Statement by Chief Executive Officer 25
Independent Auditor’s report 26
Statement of comprehensive income 28
Statement of financial position 29
Statement of changes in equity 30
Statement of cash flows 31
Notes to the financial statements 32
Controlled Entity Financial Statements - LSCIFT 63

LSC Annual Report 2015-16 24



LONG SERVICE CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

STATEMENT BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

Under Section 41C of the Public Finance and Audit Act, 1983, 1 state that in my opinion:
The accompanying financial statements and notes thereto exhibit a true and fair
view of the financial position and financial performance of the Long Service Corporation as
at 30 June 2016.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of applicable
Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations), the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulation, 2015 and the

Treasurer’s Directions.

Further, I am not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars included in
the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

k

Robert Whitfield
Chief Executive Officer, Long Service Corporation

Dated 16 September 2016 at Sydney
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Long Service Corporation

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Long Service Corporation (the Corporation)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows, for the year then ended, notes
comprising @ summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation as at 30 June 2016, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards

. are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report.

| am independent of the Corporation in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110
‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ (the Code).

| have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The PF&A Act further promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies, but precluding the provision

of non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal control as
the Chief Executive Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Executive Officer must assess the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern unless the Corporation will be dissolved by an Act of Parliament or otherwise
cease operations. The assessment must include, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on the financial
statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx.
The description forms part of my auditor’s report.

My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Corporation carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial

statements on any website where they may be presented.

A Oyetunji
Director, Financial Audit Services

28 September 2016
SYDNEY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 JUNE 2016

Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
Personnel services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
TOTAL EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

Revenua
Investment revenue:
Retained taxes, fees and fines

Other revenue
Total Revenue

Gainf{loss) on disposal

MET RESULT

Other comprehensive income
Total other comprehsive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

2(a)
2(b)
2(c)
2(d)

3(a)
3(b)
3c)

Actual Budget  Actual
2016 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000
11,992 7,481 7.514
74869 01827 68,151
152 165 233
60,781 61837 56,684
147,794 161,310 132,582
30,231 71055 94,436
165,630 111,610 144,498
140 g2 112
196,001 182,757 239,046
. - 15
48207 21447 106,479
48,207 21,447 106,479
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

Statement of financial position as at 20 JUNE 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Recaivablas

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
- Plant and equipment
Intangibla assets

Total Mon-Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

MNet Assets

EQUITY
Accumulated Funds
Total Equity

Tha accompanying notes form part of these financial statemants.

Motes

1"
12

12

Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015
$000 £'000 £'000

36,805 45,743 65,714
8,731 8,853 7,889

46,516 54,508 73,703

1,137,719 1,113,723 988,078
63 404 164

156 3,525 141
1,137,938 1,117,652 999,383
1,184,474 1,172,248 1,073,086
1,914 5,505 1,705
802,584 528,304 573,786
B04. 898 533.808 575,491
137,928 436,698 304,154
137,928 436,696 304,154
942,826 970,505 879,645
241,648 201,743 183,441
241,648 201,743 183,441
241,648 201,743 183 441
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 JUNE 2016

Balance at 1 July 2015

MNet result for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2016

Balance at 1 July 2014

Met result for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2015

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Accumulated
Funds

193,441

48,207

48,207

241,648

86,962

106,479

106,479

193,441
I
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 JUNE 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Personnel services

Other

Total Payments

Receipts

Interest received

Retained taxes, fees and fines
Other

Total Receipts

MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Purchases of plant and equipment

Purchases of investments

Other

MET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

MET INCREASENDECREASE) IN CASH

Opening cash and cash equivalents

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Actual Budget Actual

2016 2016 2015

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
(7.707) (7.481) (6.990)

(77673)  (79.075)  (72.451)

(85,380)  (86,556)  (79,441)

708 2,043 1,921

164,256 111,916 144,828

1,436 1,236 1,026

166,400 115,195 147,775

17 81,020 28,639 68,334
. 7 18

(3) (290) (56)

(109,863)  (31,226)  (76,800)

(63) (2,989) (74)

(109,929)  (34,498)  (76,912)

(28,909) {5,859) (8,578)

65,714 51,602 74,292

5 36,805 45,743 65,714

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

{a)

(b

Motes to the financial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting entity

The Long Service Corporation (Corporation) is a NSW govemment entity. The Corporation is a not-for-
profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has no cash generating units. The Corporation
is consolidated as part of the NSW Total State Saclor Accounts.

The Corporation has its principal office at 19-21 Walt Streat, Gosford, and administers the Buiiding
and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act 1986 and Contract Cleaning Industry (Porfable
Long Service Leave Scheme) Act 2010 . These Acls provide portable long service payments schemes
o building and construction workers and contract cleaning workars in NSW.

The Corporation holds 100% of units issued by the Long Saervice Conporation Investment Facility Trust
(LSCIFT), an Hour-Glass investment facility managed by the New South Walas Treasury Corporation
(TCorp) at its principal office at Leval 22, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place, Sydney. Tha
Corporation controls the LSCIFT, making the Corporation a parent entily for reporting purposes.

Thesa financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 have been authorsed for issuea by the
Chief Executive Officer on 16 September 2016.

Basis of praparation

The Corporation’s financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been

prepared on an accruals basis and in accordance with:

. applicable  Australian  Accounting  Standards  (which  include  Australian  Accounting
Interpretations)

. the requirements of the Public Finance and Audid Act 1953 and Public Finance amd Auvdit
Regulation 2015, and

. the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporing Code for NSW Geaneral
Government Sactor Entities or issued by the Treasurer.

The Corporation’s financial statements are saparate financial statements in accordance with AASE

127 "Separate Financial Statements’. The Corporation has applied the exemption from producing

consolidated financial statements available under paragraphes 4(a) and Ausd. 1 of AASE 10

‘Conzolidated Financial Statements”.

The Corporation accounts for its invesiment in its subsidiary, the LSCIFT, by initially measuring the
investmant at fair valua and subsequently classifying the investment as measured at fair value on the
basis of the Corporation's business modeal for managing the investment. Gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Plant and equipment, and financial assats at Yair valua through profit or loss' are measured at fair
valua. Other financial stalement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention
axcapl whera specified otherwise.

Judgements, key assumplions and eslimations managemen! has made are disclosed in the relevant
noles to the financial statements.

All amounts are rounded 1o the neares! one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian
curmancy.
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fe)  Statemeant of compliance

The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include
Australian Accounting Interpretations.

{d)  Insurance

The entity’s insurance aclivities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of
self insurance for Govermnment antities. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager
based on pas! claim experience.

{&)  Accounting for the Goods and Saervices Tax (GST)

Ineome, expanses and assels anre recognised net of the amount of GST, excapl that the:

amount of GST incurred by the entity as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office is recognised as part of an assel’s cost of acquisition or as part of an item of
axpansa and

recaivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST
componants of cash flows arising from investing and financing activilies which are recoverable from, or
payable 1o, the Australian Taxation Office are classified as operating cash flows.

N Income Recognition

Income s maasured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable.
Additional comments regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed
Ierhomw.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Investment Revenuea

Mew South Wales Treasury Corporation (TCorp) administers the Corporation’s investment funds
through its Hour-Glass Investment Facilities. Investmeant income comprises interest and
changes in the unit value of the Corporation's investments in TCorp Hour-Glass investment
facilities, including the LSCIFT.

Imtarest income is recognisad using the effective interest method as set oul in AASE 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Reatained laxes, feas and fines
Long sarvice levy income

In relation o the Building and Construction Industry a levy is applied at the rate of 0.35% on the
cost of building and construction of $25,000 or above. Long Service Levy income is recognised
when il is received of receivable by the Corporation or the Local Govermmant Councils acting in
their capacity as agenis.

In relation o the Contract Cleaning Industry, a levy is applied at the rate of 1.7% of the cost of
wages paid to workers in that industry. Employers are required to lodge refums on a quarierly
basis. Long service levy income is recognised as these returns are lodged with the Corporation
on an accruals basis, e.g. incomea applicable to employer retums received in July for the June
guarter are recognised as levy iNcome in June.

Other Revenue
Other revenue consists of miscellaneous income thal is recognised as il accrues,

() Assels

(i)

Acquisiions of assats

Assals acquired are initially recognised at cosl. Coslt is the amount of cash or cash equivalents
paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its
acquisition or construction or, whare applicable, the amount attributed lo that assel when initially
recognised in accordance with the requiraments of other Australian Accounting Standards.

Assals acquired al no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised al their fair
value at the date of acquisition.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(i)

(i)

Fair value is the prica thal would be received 1o sell an assal in an ordery iransaction between
marketl participants at measurement date.

Where paymenlt for an assel is deferred beyond normal cradil terms, ils cost is the cash price
equivalent; i.e. deferred payment amount is effectively discounted over the period of credit.

Capitalisation thresholds

Planit, equipment and intangible assats costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part of
a network costing maore than 85 000) are capitalised.

Revaluation of plant and equipment

Physical non-current assals are valued in accordance with the “Valuation of Physical Non-
Current Assals at Fair Value® Policy and Guidelines Papar (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair
value in accordance with AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 116 Property, Flant and
Equiprmant .

All of the Corporalion's assels are non-specialised assels with shor useful lives and are
measurad at depraciated historical cost, as an approximation of fair value. The Corporation has

aszessad thal any difference between fair value and deprecated historical cost is unlikely to bea
material. Also refer Note 10 for further information regarding fair value.

Impairmant of plant and equipment

As a nol-for-profit antity with no cash generating units, impairmant under AASE 136 Impaimmeant
of Assets is unlikely to arise. As property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value or an
amounl that approsdrmates fair value, impairment can only arsa in the rare dreumslances such
as where the costs of disposal are material. Specifically, impairmant is unlikely for not-for-profit
anliies given that AASE 136 modifies the recoverable amount test for non-cash genarating
asszels for nol-for-profit entities o the higher of fair value less costs of dispesal and depreciated
raplacement cost, where depreciated replacement cost is also fair value.

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable assets so as 1o write off
the depreciable amount of each assel as it is consurmed over its useful life to the Corporation.

All material separalaly identifiable components of assels are depracialed over their useful lives.

Motor vehicles and plant and equipment are depreciated over five years and computer
equipment is depreciated over thres years. The Corporation's leasehold improvements ane
considerad 1o have a useful life equivalent to the un-axpired period of the leasa.

Maintenance
Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are chargad as expensaes as incurmad, excapl whare

they relate to the replacement of a part or component of an assetl, in which case the cosls are
capitalised and depreciated.

Leasad assels

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expeansa on a skraight line basis over the lease
tarm.

Exisling operating leases relate to leasing premisas at 19-21 Wall Street, Gosford, 2-10
Valentine Avenue Parramalla and small iterns of plant and equipment.

The Corporation i nol a party to any finance lease.

Intangible assals

The entity recognises intangible assats only if it is probable thal future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the cost of the assal can be measured raliably. Intangible assels ara

measurad initially at cost. Where an assel is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair
value as al the date of acguisition.

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed o be finite.
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(i)

(x)

Intangible assets are subsaquently measurad at fair value only if there is an active market. As
there is no active market for the enlity's intangible assels, the assals are carmed al cosl lass any
accumulated amortisation and impairmeant losses.

The entity’s intangible assels which comprise computer software are amortised using the
straight line method over a period of three or five years.

Intangible assals are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the carmying amount is reduced 1o
recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as an impairment loss.

Recaivables

Recaivables are non-denvative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments thal are not
guoted in an active markel. These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Subsequent measurament is al amortised cost using the aeffective interast method, less an

allowance for any impairmeant of recaivables. Any changes are recognisad in the nel resull for
the year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Short-lerm receivables with no stated interest rale are measured at the original invoice amount
where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Investmants

Investmeants are intially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of investmants nol at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. The antity determines the classification of its financial
assels after initial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this at each
financial year and.

Fair walue through profit or loss - Tha enlily subsequently measures investments dassified as
‘hedd for trading’ or designated upaon initial recognition ‘at fair value through profit or loss' at fair
value. Financial assels are classified as "held for rading’ if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Gains or losses on these assets are recognised in the net result for the

year.

With the exceplion of the LSCIFT, Hour-Glass Investment Facilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss as these financial assels are managed and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk managament slrategy, and
information about these asseals is provided internally on thal basis 1o the entity's key
managament parsonnel.

The risk managemeant strateqy of the Corporation has been developed consistent with the
investmenl powers granted under the provision of the Public Authorities (Financial
Arrangements) Act 1987 No 33.

The accounting treatment applied to the LSCIFT Hour-Glass investment facility described in
Mote 1(b) is effectively the same as thal applied to other Hour-Glass investment facilities, that is,
carried al fair value wilth movemnents in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Hour-Glass cash facdiliies are distinet fram Hour-Glass invastment faciliies.

The movameant in the fair value of the Hour-Glass investment facilities, including LSCIFT,
incorporates distributions recaived as well as unrealised movements in fair value and is reported
in the lire item ‘investment revenoe’.

Purchases or sales of invesimants under contract that require delivery of the assetl within the
timeframe established by convention or regulation are recognised on the trade date; i.e. the date
the entity commils to purchase or sall the asset

The fair value of invesimenls thal are traded al fair value in an active market is determined by
referance to quoted current bid prices at the close of business on the statement of finandcial
position date.
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fh)

(»d)

(i)

e ]

Impairmant of financial assets

All financial assals, excepl thosa measured at fair value through profil and loss, are subject 1o
an annual review for impairmenl An allowance for impairmeant is established when there is
objective evidence that the entity will not be able to collect all amounts due.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amaount of the allowancs is the difference
betwean the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
net result for the year.

Da-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the financial
assals expire; or if the antily transfers the financial asset:

» where substantially all the risks and rewards have been fransferred or

« where the antity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the enlity has not
relained control.

Where the enlity has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or
fransfermad control, the assal is recognised 1o the extent of the entity’s continuing involament in
the assal

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelied or expires.
Olher Assels

Other azsels are recognised on a hisloric cost basis.

Liabilities

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Payables

Thesa amounts reprasent liabilities for goods and services provided o the entity and olher
amounts. Payables are recognised inilially at fair value. Subsequent measurement is al
amortised cost using the effective inlerest mathod. Short-lerm payables with no stated interest
rale are measurad at the original invoice amount whera the effect of discounting is immatarial.

Prowvision for Scheme Liabilities

The liability is determined by annual actuaral valuation. The assumptions used in arriving at that
valuation are set out in note 12(b).

Finance costs

Schema liabiliies are valued using AASE 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabiities and Contingeant
Assels which provides that the increase in a provision resulting from the unwinding of the
discount rate is o be recognised as a borrowing cost.

Provision for Levy Refund

The liability is detarmined from assumplions based on past experience of the Corporation's levy
refunds resulting from requests for datermination of the leviable costs.

Parsonnel Sarvices

The Corporation’s staff and human resource administration were provided by NSW Treasury.
Payroll processing is paformed by the Corporation.

The NSW Treasury is not a Special Purpose Servica Entity controlled by the Corporation. bn
aceordance with NSW Treasury Circular 15/07 “Financial Reporting and Annual Reporting
Requirements arising from parsonnel servica arrangemants”, a liability represanting the lotal
armount payable to NSW Treasury is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.
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i)

As the Corporation is not the employer, the disdosure requirements of AASE 119 Employes
Benefits in respect of employes benelits do not apply. However, for clarity and transparency, the
Personnel Services Provision is disaggregated in the notes to the financial statements into its
major componants which include Annual Leave, Long Service Leave and Unfunded
Superannuation.

(a) Salaries and wages, recreation leave, sick leave and on-costs

Salanes and wages (including non-monetary benefits) and paid sick leave that are expacled 1o
be sattled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
sarvice are recognised and measured at the undiscounted amount of the beneafits.

Annual leave is nol expected o be settled wholly before twealve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. As such, il is required
1o be measurad al present value in accordance with AASE 119 Employes Benefits (although
short-cul methods are parmitied).

Actuarial advice oblained by Treasury has confirmed that using the nominal annual leave
balance plus the annual leave entilernents accrued while taking annual leave (calculated using
7.9% of the nominal value of annual leave) can be used o approximate the prasant value of tha
annual leave liability. The Corporation has assessed the actuarial advice based on the
Corporations circumstances and has delermined that the effect of discounting is immaterial o
annual leave.

Unusad non-vesting sick leave does not give rise 1o a liability as it is not considerad probable
that sick lsave taken in the fulure will be greater than the banalits accrued in the future.

(b} Long sarvice leave and superannuation

Long sarvice leave s measurad at presant valua in accordance with AASE 119 Employes
Benefits . This is basad on the application of certain factors (specified in NSWTC 15/09) 1o
amployees with five or more years of servica, using current rates of pay. Thesa factors wene
determined based on an actuarnial review o approximate presant value.

The superannuation axpensa for the financial year is determined by using the formula specified
in the Treasurar's Directions. The expense for certain superannuation schemes (iLa. Basic
Benalit and First State Super) is calculated as a percantage of the employees' salary. For other
superannuation schemes (e Stale Superannuation Scheme and Stale Authorities
Superannuation Schemsa), the expense is calculated as a multiple of the employesas”
contributions.

(c) Consequential on-costs

Consaquential costs to employment are recognised as liabilities and expenses whare the
amployee benalits to which they relale have been recognised. This includes outstanding
amounts of payroll tax, workers' compensation insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax.

Fair value hierarchy

A number of the Corporation®s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
valuas for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Whean meaasuring fair valua the
valuation technigue used maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimises the use of
unobsarvable inputs. Under AASE 13 Fair Valve Measurement , the Corporation categorises, for
disclosure purposes, the valuation lechniques based on the inpuls used in the valuation lechniques as
follows:

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markels for identical assets / iabilities thal the Corporation can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, aither
direclly or indirectly.

Level 3 - inputs thal are not based on cbsarvable market data (uncbservable inputs).

The Corporation recognises ransfers between levels of fair value hierarchy al the end of the reporting
period during which the change occumed.

Refer Mote 10 and Note 15(e) for further disclosuras regarding fair value measurermeants of financial
and non-financial assels.
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i

ik

il

(m)

(n)

Equity
Accumulated Funds
The category "Accumulated Funds' includes all current and prior period retained funds and losses.

Budgetad amounts

The budgeted amounts are drawn from the onginal budgeted financial statemeants prasanted to
Parliament in respact of the reporting period. Subsequent amendments to the original budget (e.g.
adjustmeants for transfers of functions betwean entities as a resull of Administrative Arrangements
Orders) ara not reflected in the budgeted amounts. Major variances bebween the original budget
amounts and the actual amounts disclosed on the primary financial statements are explained in Note
15.

Comparative information

Excepl when an Australian Accounting Standard permils or requires othersise, comparative
infarmation is disciosed in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial
staterneants.

Going Concem

The Corporation has adopted the going concern basis, as it is cash flow positive and has adequate
resources 1o pay its liabiliies as and when they become payable. In addition to this the Governmeant
has the ability o alter the levy rates and legislation in order to increase revenue sireams.

An actuarial review was conducted by Professional Financial Solutions in June 2016. The review
estimates thal the Corporation will remain in surplus in the forward years.

Changes in accounting policies, including new and revised Australian Accounting Standards

{i) Effective for the first timea in 201516

The Corporation has adopted all new, revised or amendead Standards and Interpratations ssued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ("AASE") thal are relevant and effective for the

current raporting year.

The adopticn of thesa Standards and Interpretations did not have any impaecl on the financial
performance or position of the Corporation.

Any impacts on the accounting policies of the Corporation fram the adoption of these accounting
standards and inlerpretations are disclosed in the relevant accounting policy.

*+  AASE 2015-3 regarding materiality
(i) lzsued but not yet effective

Cartain new standards and interpretations have recently been issued or amendad but are not yeat
affective for the curmant reporting year. IL s considerad impraclicable to presantly determine the
impact of adopting those new standards and interpretations

The following new Accounting Standards have not been applied and are not yel effective:

+  AASE 9 AASE 2014-7 regarding financial instruments.
+  AASH 1057 and AASE 2015-9 Application of Australian Accounting Standards

« AASE 20151 regarding annual improvameants to Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014
cycle

+  AASH 20152 regarding amendments to AASE 101 (disclosure initiative)

«  AASE 2015-6 Amendments lo Auslralian Accounting Standards - Extending Related Party
Disclosure ko Nol-for-Profit Public Saclor Entities
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
LONG SERVICE CORPORATION

MNotes to the financial statements

2. Expenses Excluding Losses

(a)

Personnel services expenses

The Corporation received personnel services from NSW Treasury to resource the Corporation. The
Corporation recognises the relevant employee related expenses associated with this arrangement as
follows:

2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Salaries and wages (including annual leave) 5968 5,868
Salaries - voluntary redundancy 242 3
Superannuation — defined benefit plans * 4457 474
Superannuation = defined contribution plans 494 468
Long service leave 421 325
Payroll tax and fringe benefits tax 394 363
Workers' compensation insurance 16 13
Total Personnel services axpense 11 7,514

The amount of Personnel services expense that has been capitalised, and therefore excluded from
the above is $24 486 (2015 534,045)

* Superannuation — defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans — coniributions 244 243
Defined benefit plans = liability adjustments 4213 231
Total Superannuation = defined benefit plans 4,457 474

Superannuation net actuarial loss of $4.3 million (2015: $1.4 m loss) in respect of personnel who are
members of defined benefit superannuation plans, are recognised directly in the Net Result. The
actuarial loss was impacted by a decrease in the discount rate used to determing the present value of
the defined benefit obligations. AASE 119 together with TC 11117 mandate the yield on Commonwealth
Bond (10yr) as the discount rate This rate decreased from 3.01% at 30 June 2015 to 1.99% at 30 June
2016.
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(b)

(c)

Other operating expenses including the following:

Motes
Auditors remuneration - audit of financial statements
Long service expense
Claims paid
Liability expense
12 (b)

Operating lease rental expense

- minimum lease payment
Insurance

Consultants

Contractors

Computing

Marketing

Travel

Oecupancy - outgoings, electricity, cleaning and maintenance
Long service levy commissions
Service agreements

Other administrative expenses
Total other operating expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation

= Plant and equipment

= Computer equipment

= Motor vehicles

= Leasehold improvemants

Amortisation
= Computer software

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

2016 2015
§'000 §'000
87 77
73,013 69,419
(2,026) (4.428)
70,987  64.991
368 353

11 10
679 167
231 103
T43 730

89

27 33
152 155
512 497
119 169
871 777
74,869 68,151
[ 7

49 64

15 18

34 138
104 227
48 &

48 &
152 233
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(d} Finance costs

2016 2015
Motes £'000 $'000
Unwinding of discount rate 12 (b) 60,781 36,684

60,781 56684

Refer Mote 12{b}i) for detail on changes to the discount rate used for the 2016 and 2015 years.

3. Rewvenue
{a) Investment revenue

Interest revenue from financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss
= Bank interest 1,450 2235

Interest revenue from financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss
= TCorp cash facility 3 12

Fair value movements from financial assets at fair value - TCorp Hour-
Glass investment facilities, including LSCIFT 28,778 92,189

30,231 94436

(b} Retained taxes, fees and fines

Long service kevy income 167,282 145,784
Long sarvice kevy refunds (1,662) (2,286)
1 144 498
() Other revenue
Miscellaneous income 140 112
140 112

4. Gain/{Loss) on disposal

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of plant and equipment - 15

5. Cuwrrent Assels - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 36,805 65,252

Short Term Deposit
TCorp Hour-Glass cash facility = 462
36,805 63,714

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash on
hand and TCorp Hour-Glass cash facility.
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Cash and cash equivalent assets recognised in the statement of financial position are reconciled at the
end of the financial year to the statement of cash flows as follows:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents {per statement of financial position) 36,805 65,714
Closing Cash and cash equivalents (per statement of cash flows) 36,805 65,714

Refer Mote 19 for details regarding credit risk, liguidity risk and market rigk arizing from financial
instruments.

Current Assels - Receivables

Current
Retained taxes, fees and fines 8,754 7471
Other 911 439
Less: Allowance for impairment (53) (33)
Prepayrments 119 112
9,731 7,989
Movement in the allowance for impairment
Balanoe at 1 July (33) {10
Amounts written off 25 1
{Increase) [ decrease in allowance recognised in profit and loss (45) (24}
Balance at 30 June (53) (33)

Refer Mote 19 for details regarding credit rizk, liquidity risk and market rizk arizsing from financial
instruments.

Non-Current Assets - Financial Assels at Fair Value
Non-Currant
TCorp - Hour-Glass investment facility trust - LSCIFT 1,437,719 999078

1,137,719 999,078

Refer Mote 19 for further information regarding fair value measurement, credit risk, liguidity risk and
market risk arising from financial instruments.

LSC Annual Report 2015-16

42



8. Non-Current Asseis - Plant and Equipment

Plart and Leaschold Computer Maobar
Eguipment Improvements Equipmernt Vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2015 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 336 1,122 210 99 1,767
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (324) {1,088) (138) (53) {1,603)
Met carrying amount 12 34 T2 46 164
At 30 June 2016 - fair value
Gross carmying amount 282 961 205 99 1,547
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (274) {961) (181) (68)  (1,484)
Mt carrying armount 8 - 24 31 63

Reconciliation

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of
the current reporting period is set out balow:

Year ended 30 June 2016

Met carrying amount at start of year 12 34 T2 46 164
Additions 2 1 3
Disposzals -
Adjustments for disposals =
Depreciation axpense {6) {34) {439} {15) {104)
Met carrying amount at end of year 8 = 24 3 63
Plant and Leasehold Computer
Eguipment Improvements Equipment Motor Vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 000 $000 $'000
At 1 July 2014 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 337 1,122 191 110 1,760
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (318) (950) {75) 79y (1,422)
Mt carrying amount 19 172 116 31 338
At 30 June 2015 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 336 1,122 210 99 1,767
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (324) (1,088) {138) (53) (1,603)
Met carrying amount 12 34 72 48 164
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Reconcillation

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of

the previous reporting period is set out below:

Plantand  Leaschald Computer Mator
Equipment improvements Equipment Vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Year ended 30 June 2015
Met carrying amount at start of year 19 172 116 31 338
Additions - 20 36 58
Disposals - - - (48) (48)
Adjustments for disposals - - - 45 45
Depreciation expense (7) (138) {B4) (18) (227)
Met carrying amount at end of year 12 34 T2 48 164

Further details regarding the fair value measurement of plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 10.

Intangible Assets
Software

At 1 July 2015

Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Met carrying amount

At 30 June 2016

Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Met carrying amount

Year ended 30 June 2016
Met carrying amount at start of year
Additions - externally acquired

= internally developed
Dispozals
Adjustments for disposals
Amartisation
Met carrying amount at end of year

156

141
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10.

At 1 July 2014

Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Met carrying amount

At 30 June 2015

Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization and impairment
MNet carrying amoumnt

Year ended 30 June 2015
Met carrying amount at start of year
Additions - externally acquired

- internally developed
Disposals
Adjustments for disposals
Amaortisation
Met carrying amount at end of year

Fair value measurement of Non-Financial Assets

s'0o0

2,349

(2,276)
T3

2423
(2, 282)
141

T3
40

All of the Corporation's Plant and Equipment assets are measured at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation as a surrogate for fair value because the assets are non-specialised assets and any
difference babween fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

The fair value measurement base for these assets do not require fair value hierachy disclosure.
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11. Current Liabilities - Payables

12

Currant
Personnel Services
- Accrued salaries, wages and on costs

Creditors and other accruals
Long Service Payments
Long Service Levy commissions

Refer Mote 19 for details regarding credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk arising from financial

instruments.

Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions

Current Mote
Other Provisions
Personnel services
- Annual leave *
- Long service leave **
12(a)(i)
Scheme liability *** 12({b){i)
Provision for levy refund 12(e)(i)

2016 2015
$'000 $°000
242 265
242 265
603 407
1,011 o82
58 51
1,914 1,705
617 B30
2,492 2421
3,109 3,051
799,761 570,530
114 205
799,875 570,735
802,984 573786

* The current Other Provisions Personnel services included 362,443 (2015: $87,153) of annual leave

entitlements accrued but not expected to be taken within 12 months

** The current Other Provizions Personnel services included 51.5 million (2015: $1.3 millicn) of long
service leave entittements accrued but not expected to be taken within 12 months

*** The current Other Provisions includes S799.7 million (2015: 3570.0 million) for scheme liability and
although this amount represents the value for which the Corporation does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months, the Corporation only expects to pay claims of $77.1

millicn over the next twelve months.
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Non-current MNote 2016 2015

$'000 5000
Other Provisions
Personnel Services
- Long service leave 53 16
- Unfunded superannuation liability 10,579 6,366
T12(a)(ii) 10,632 6,382
Scheme liability 12(b)(il) 127,296 297,772

127,296 297,772
137,928 304,154

Aggragate Personnel services and related on costs

Payables - current 242 265
Provisions - current 3,109 3,051
Provigions - non-current 10,632 6,382

13,983 9,698

Refer Mote 19 for details regarding credit risk, liguidity risk and market rigk arizing from financial
instruments.

(a) Provision for Personnel services

2016 2015
$'000 5000
(i) Current 3,109 3,051
[{1]] Non-Currant 10,632 6,382

13,741 9,433

Mevement in Provision

Carrying amount at beginning of year 9,433 8,986

Additional provisions recognised 5166 1305

Amounts paid (858) (B858)

Carrying amount at end of year 13,741 9,433
(b) Provision for Scheme liability

{i) Current 799,761 570,530

(i) MNon-current 127,296 297,772

927,057 868,302
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Movement in Provision

30 June 2016

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additional provisions recognised

Claims paid

Increase in provision due to change in discount rate
Unwinding of discount rate

Carrying amount at end of year

30 June 2015

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additional provisions recognised
Claims paid

Reduction in provision due to change in discount rate

Unwinding of discount rate
Carrying amount at end of year

Notes

2 (b)
2 (b)
2(d)
2(d)

2(b)
2(b)
2(d)
2(d)

2 il
g i

Total
$'000
846,108 22,193 868,302
32,529 5277 37,806
(72.672) (341) (73,013)
32,307 874 33,181
50227 1554 60,781

897,500 29557 927,057

801,393 14,653 816,046
57,618 7373 64,991
(69,000) (419) (69,419)

56,098 586 56,684

846,109 22193 868,302

The Long Service Corporation Act 2010, under section 16, requires that actuarial investigations be
undertaken to determine the sufficiency of the Funds and the adequacy of the long service levy rates at

intervals not exceeding:

& 3 years for the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986

2 years for the Contract Cleaning Industry (Portable Long Service Leave Scheme) Act 2010

Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986

A full actuarial investigation was undertaken by Professional Financial Solutions as at 30 June 2015.
They have further updated this to 30 June 2016 and estimated the scheme liabilities to be as follows:

Note
AASB Valuation (i)
Accrued Benefit Reserve (ii)
Vested Benefits (i)

2016 2015
§'000  s'000
897,500 846,109
897,500 846,109
864,866 794036
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0]

(i)

(i)

The AASE Valuation s the expected benefit payments from the Scheme arising from service up to
the valuation date and payable over the future working lifetime of the current workers, which are
then discounted to the date of the valuation. In determining these payments as at 30 June 2018,
the following key assumplions were made:

* Future wage increase 3.0% (2015: 3.5%)

* Rate of future accrual of service (only used to determine if workers qualify for benefit): 195

days per year (2015: 190 days per year)

* Exits due to withdrawal, retirement, death and disability: based on historical evidence

{2015: based on historical evidence)

* Im zervice claims: based on historical evidence (2015: based on historical evidence)

* Incurred But Not Recorded Service (IBNR): 6% for active workers only (2015: 5%)

* Inforce Inactive Worker: their vested banefits

* Out of force and In Force Inactive Workers: 80% of their vested benefit (2015: 100%)

* Discount Rate 6% (2015: 7.0%). The schame liability has been discounted at a rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The discount rate is considered to be the long term rate of retum on the Scheme
assets properly invested to fund the growth in the Schemes liabilities.

The Accrued Benefit Reserve is the calculation of scheme liabiliies, taking into consideration an
allowance for unreported service of active workers, and discounted by the projected rate of return
on the Scheme assels as determined by the actuary. The actuary uses the Accrued Benefit
Resarve to assess the Corporation’s funding position and for purposes of setting the
recommended rate of levy payable to the Fund.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefit Reserve were:
*rate of increase in wages 3.0% per annum (2015: 3.5%)
*rate of return on assets 6.% (2015: 7.0%)

The Vested Benefit is the amount of benefits payable if service ceased on the valuation date.
Workers qualify for a vested benefit if they have attained age 55 and have at least 55 days of
accumulated service credits or if they are under 55 and have at least 1,100 days of accumulated
service credits.

For the purpose of the above valuations the following:

Numbers of workers were valued:

2016 2015
Active within last two years 223,562 214,000
Inactive for last two years but active within two prior years 53,351 34,163
Inactive for four or more years 14,770 13,760
Total number of workers valued 201 281,923
Expected timing of sattement:
Mot later than one year T2, T18 70,048
Later than one year and not later than five years 273413 261,259
Later than five years 551,369 514,802
Total 897,500 546,109
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Sensitivity analysis for valuation

The liability represents the best estimate by the actuary of the present value of benefits accrued by
sarvice to date, using appropriate actuarial techniques and financial and demographic
assumptions. The table below illusirates the uncertainty associated with this liability, by previding
the change which would arise from using a range of more and less optimistic assumptions.

Impact on Net Result

Carrying
amaunt +10% =10%
Assumptions £'000 $°000 $'000
Wages 897,500 (B9,700) 89,700
IBNR 897,500 (4,400) 4,400
Demographic assumption 897,500 (6,400} 7,400
Discount Rate 897,500 19,800 (20,800)

(80,700) 80,700

Contract Cleaning Industry (Portable Long Service Leave Scheme) Act 2010

A full actuarial investigation was undertaken by Professional Financial Solutions as at 30 June 2014.
They have further updated this to the 30 June 2016 and estimated the schemae liabilities to be as follows:

2016 2015

Note $000 5000
AASE Valuation (i) 20557 22193
Accrued Benefit Reserve {ii) 29,557 22,193
Vested Benefits (i) 26,597 16,003

{iy The AASE Valuation is the expected benefit payments from the Scheme arising from service up to
the valuation date and payable over the future working lifetime of the current workers, which are
then discounted to the date of the valuation. In determining these payments as at 30 June 2018,
the following key assumplions were made:

* Future wage increase: 2.5% pa plus 1% for each increasing yvear of age up to 40
(2015: 3.0% plus 1% for each increasing year of age up to 40)

* Rate of future accrual of service (only used to determine if a worker qualifies for a benefit):
365 days per year (2015: 365 days per year)

* Exitz due to withdrawal, retirement, death and disability: based on historical evidence

* In service claims: based on historical evidence

* Incurred But Mot Recorded Service (IBNR): Nil (2015:Nil)

* In Force Inactive Workers: their vested benafit (2015: Nil)

* Dizcount Rate 8% (2015: 7.0%). The scheme liability has been discounted at a rabe that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The discount rate is considered to be the long term rate of returm on the Scheme
assets properly invested to fund the growth in the Schemes liabilities.
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(i) The Accrued Benefit Resarve is the calculation of scheme liabilities, taking into consideration the
itemz mentionad in (i} above and discounted by the projected rate of return on the Scheme assets
as determined by the actuary. The actuary uses the Accrued Benefit Reserve to assess the
Corporation’s funding position and for purposes of setting the recommended rate of levy payable to
the Fund.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefit Reserve wera:

* rate of increase in wages 2.5% pa plus 1% for each increasing year of age up to 40
(2015: 3.0% plus 1% for each increasing year of age up to 40)

* rate of return on assets 6.0% (2015: 7.0%).

{iii} The Vested Benefit is the amount of benefits payable if service ceased on the valuation date and
the worker has more than five years eligible service (including service prior to the commencement
date).

For the purpose of the above valuations the following:
Mumbers of workers were valued:

2016 2015
Active 26,511 26,723
Inactive 36,626 28,458
Total number of workers valued 63,137 55,19
Expected timing of sattement:
Mot later than one year 4,369 4,706
Later than one year and not later than five years 18,390 15,676
Later than five years 6,798 1.811
Total 29,557 22193

Sensitivity analysis for valuaticn

The liability represents the best estimate by the actuary of the present value of benefits accrued by
sarvice to date, using appropriate actuarial technigues and financial and demographic
assumptions. The table below illustrates the uncertainty associated with this liability, by providing
the change which would arise from using a range of more and less optimistic assumptions.

Impact on Met Result

Carrying
amount +10% -10%
Asumplions $°000 $'000 $'000
Wages 29,557 (2,955) 2956
Demographic assumption 29,557 232 {260)
Discount Rate 29 557 530 (548)

(2,193) 2,148
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{c) Provision for Levy Refund

2016 2015
§'000 5'000
1] Current 114 205
114 205

Movement in Provision
Carrying amount at beginning of year 205 138
Additional provisions recognised 1,662 2,286
Claims paid {1,753) (2,219)
Carrying amount at end of year 114 205

The Corporation has an obligation under section 42 of the Building and Construction industry Long
Service Payments Act 1986 to refund monies where, upon application in the approved form, it considers
the cost of erection of the building is less than previously determined.

The liability is determined from assumptions based on past experence of the Corporation’s caleulation of
levy refunds resulting from requests for determination of the leviable costs. The provision is based on an
analysis of levies paid where the value of works were significant and no determination or refund requests
had been received to date.

There iz a degree of uncertainty surrounding the timing of refund requests. However based on past
axperience of the Corporation and discussions with major levy pavers there is a high likelinood that there
will b& an economic outflow of funds from the Corporation within the next twelve months.
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13.

14.

15.

Commitments for expenditure

{a) Capital Commitments

Aggregate capital expenditure for the acquisition of software contracted for

at balance date and not provided for:

Mot later than one year
Total (including GST)

The total capital commitments above include input tax credits of SNl (2015: $605) that are

expected to be recoverable from the ATO.
(b} Operating Lease Commitments

Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and payable:

Mot later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Taotal {including GST)

2016 2015
§000 5000
- 5

- B

441 432
416 896
857 1328

The total operating lease commitments above include input tax credits of 78,000

(2015: $121,000) that are expected to be recoverable from the ATO.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
There werne no known contingent assets as at reporting date (2015: Mil).

Contingent liabilities as at reporting date (2015: Nil):

Budget Review
MNet result

The actual net result was greater than budget by $26.8 million, primarily due to the following:

« Decreased return on TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities, including
LSCIFT

+ Increased collection of levies from both Schemes

+  Decreased Finance cost due to unwinding of discount rate
+ Decreased Long service expensea

* |ncreased Personnel services expense *

+ |ncrease in Consulting and Contractor expenses

+ Increased other expenzses

2016
L ¥wm

(40,356)
54,020
1,056
17,276
(4,511)
(677)
(48)
26,760
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* Refer to note 2 (a) Superannuation = defined benefit plans
Assets and liabilities

Total assets were greater than budget by $12.2 million and total liabilities were less than
budget by 527 .7 million. This resulted in an increase in the Corporation’s equity of $39.9
millicn over budget. This was primarily due to the following:

2016
1
. Increase in fair value of TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities, including
LSCIFT 23,996
. Decrease in cash, receivable, plant and equipment (11,770)
* Decrease in Schemae liability and personnel services 2T 679
=30
Cash flows
Met Increase in cash flows from operating activities due to:
+ Decrease in scheme payments and operating expenses 1,176
" Befter than expected levy receipts due to increased compliance and
increased activity in the building and construction industry 52 340
+ Lower than expected Capital Expenditure 3,206
Met decrease in cash flows from investing activities due to:
+ Better than expected returns from bank interest and miscellaneous items (1,135)
+ Purchase of TCorp Hour-Glass investment fadlities, incuding LSCIFT {78,637)
Changes in opening cash position 14,112
i)
16. Comparison with published budget information

The following budget items are aggregated differently in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income:

(i) Total Expenses including Losses 2016  Budget
Items Items
$'000 $'000

Employes Related - 28
Other operating expenses 91,827 11,017
Subsidies and grants = 88,263
Personnel services 7481 -
99,308 99, 308

Depreciation and amortisation 165 165
Finance Costs 61,837 61,837
Total Expenses including Losses 161,310 161,310
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17. Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Result

2016 2015
£'000 $'000
MNet cash flows from operating activities 81,020 68,334
Plusf{minus) non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation (152) (233)
Investment [gains) / losses 29,523 92 515
Long service payments liability expense 1,997 3,628
Provision for Levy refund 1,662 2,286
Finance costs (60.781) (56,684)
Met (profit) on disposal of plant and equipment - 15
Change in asset and liabilities:
Increasef{decrease) in receivables T 8
(Increase)decrease in payables (T61) (2,943)
(IncreaseVdecrease in provisions (4,308) (447)
MNet result 48,207 106479
18. Fund information
Fund Building & Construction Contract Claaning
Irchisstry Industry Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

5'000 $'000 $'000 5'000 £'000 $'000

Expenses excluding losses

Operating expenses

Perzonnel services expenses 11,300 6,828 692 BBE 11,992 7,514
Other operaling axpanses 68,027  ®0,311 6,842 7,840 T4BE9  RB 151
Depreciation and amortization 137 211 15 27 152 233
Finance costs 59,227 56,098 1,554 586 60,781 56,684
Total expenses excluding 138,601 123,448 9,103 0134 147,794 132582
lozsses
Revenue
Investment revenue 29,283 94,324 948 112 30,231 94 436
Retained taxes, fees and fines 155994 135,162 9,636 9,336 165,630 144498
Other revenue 140 112 - - 140 112
Total Revenua 185417 229,598 10,584 8448 196,001 239,048
Gainf{loss) on dizposal - 15 - - - 15
46,726 106,165 1,481 314) 48207 106479

Total eomprehensive income
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Fund

MNotes
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and cash
equivalents
Receivables [
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assats
Financial assets at
fair valua T
Plant and equipment 8
Intangible azsets 9

Total Noen-Current Assets

Total Assets
Fumnd

MNotes
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 11
Provigions 12

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 12
Total Nen-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Mot Assets
EQUITY

Accumulated Funds (Losses)
Total Equity

Building & Construction

Coniract Cleaning

Industry Indusiry Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
35317 64,241 1,488 1,473 36,805 63,714
7,192 5,688 2,539 2,301 9,731 7,989
42,509 69,929 4,027 3,774 46,536 73,703
1,102,509 972743 35210 26,335 1,137,719 999,078
63 164 - - 63 164
156 141 - - 156 141
1,102,728 973,048 35,210 26,335 1,137,938 999 383
1,145,237 1042977 39,237 30,109 1,184,474 1,073,086

Building & Construction Coniract Cleaning

Industry Indusiry Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 £'000 $'000
1.451 1,520 463 185 1,914 1.705
779,912 563,659 23,072 10,127 B02984 573,786
781,363 565,179 23,535 10,312/ 804,898 575491
131,127 291,777 6,801 12377 137928 304,154
131,127 291,777 6,801 12 377 137928 304,154
912,490 855,956 30,336 22689 942826 879,645
232,747 185,021 8,901 7420 241,648 193441
232,747 186,021 8,901 7420 241648 193441
232,747 186,021 8,901 7420 241,648 193441
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19.

Financial instruments

The Corporation's principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arse
directly from the Corporation’s operations or are required to finance the Corporation’s operations. The
Corporation does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,

for speculative purposes.

The Corporation's main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with the
Corporation's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further guantitative
and qualitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Chief Executive Officer has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk
management and reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. Risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the rizks faced by the Corporation, to set rigk limits and
controls and t© monitor risks. Compliance with policies is reviewsad by the Corporation's managemanit,
Audit and Rizk Committes and external azset consultants on a continual basis.

{a) Financial instrument categories

Financial N Carrying| Carrying

Assaots ote |Category Amou Amount
20186 2015

Class: $'000 $'000

Cash and cash

equivalents 5 WA 36.805| 65,714

Receivablas * 6 |Receivables (at amortised cost) T45| 326

Financial Azsats
at fair value 7 At fair value through profit or loss 1,137,719] 599,078

* Excludes statutory receivables and prepayments (not within scope of AASE 7)

Financial Carrying| Carrying
Liabilities Note |Category Amou Amount

2016 2015
Class: £'000 $'000

Financial liabilities measured at
Payables * 11 amortised cost. 8a1 517

* Excludes statutory payables (not within scope of AASE T)
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(b} Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there iz a possibility that the counterparties will default on their contractual
obligations, resulting in a financial loss to the Corporation. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
generally represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets (net of any allowance for
imnpairmnent).

Credit risk arises from the financial agsets of the Corporation, including cash, receivables and
deposits. No collateral is held by the Corporation. The Corporation has not granted any financial

guarantees.

Credit risk associated with the Corporation's financial assets, other than receivables, is managed
through the selection of counterparties and establishment of minimum credit rating standards.

Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand, balances within the NSW Treasury Banking System and deposits

in the NSW Treasury Corporation (TCaorp) Hour-Glass cagh facility. Interest iz eamed on daily bank
balances at the monthly average TCorp 11 am unoffical cash rate, adjusted for a management fee
to NSW Treasury. The TCorp Hour-Glass cash facility is further discussed in paragraph {d) below.

Recalvables

All debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at balance date. Collectability of debtors is
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer's Directions are
followed to recover cutstanding amounts, including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be
uncollectable are written off. An allowance for impairment is raised when there is cbjective
evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due. This evidence includes
past exparience, and current and expacted changes in economic conditionz. No interest is eamead
on debtors.

The Corporation is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single debtor or
group of debtors. Based on past experience, debtors that are not past due (2016: SNil; 2015: Nil)
and less than three months past due (2016 SNil; 2015: Nil) are not considered impaired.

The only financial assets that are past due or impaired are "retained taxes fees and fines’, and
‘other’ in the ‘receivable’ category of the statement of financial position.

Total Past Due but not impaired Considered

$000 §000 impaired

%000

=3 months | 3-6 month | =& months
ovardus ovardus ovardua
Receivables

2016 745 745 = e 0

2015 326 326 - - L]

*The aging analysis excludes statutory receivables. (not within scope of AASE T)
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(<)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to meat its payment obligations whan
they fall due. The Corporation continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and
maturities planning to ensure adequate holding of high guality liquid assets.

The Corporation does not have any credit standby arrangements. No assets have been pledged as
collateral. The Corporation’s exposure to liquidity risk iz deemed insignificant based on prior
periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

Liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether or not invoiced. Amounts owing to suppliers [which are unsecured) are setthed in
accordance with the policy set out in NSW TC 1112 For small business suppliers, if trade terms
are not specified, payment is made not later than 30 days from date of receipt of a cormectly
rendered invoice. For other suppliers, if trade terms are not specified, payment iz made no later
than the end of the manth following the month in which an invoice or a statement is received. For
small business suppliers the NSW TC 1112 allows the Minister to award interest for [ate payment.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Corporation’s financial liabilities, together
with the interest rate exposure.

m:':: Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates
<1 yr. 1-5 yrs. >5 yrs.
2016 $'000 $'000| $'o000| $'000
|Payables 861 Non Interest Bearing B61 - -
2015
Payables 317 Non Interest Baaring 317 = -

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial
liabilities.

Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The Corporation’s exposures to market risk are primarily
through price risks associated with the movement in the unit price of the Hour-Glass Investrment
facilities.

The effect on profit and equity due to a reascnably possible change in risk variable is outlined in
the information below, for interest rate risk and other price risk. A reasonably possible change in
risk variable has been determined after taking into account the economic envircnment in which the
Corporation operates and the time frame for azsessment (i.e. until the end of the next annual
reporting period). The sensitivity analysis iz based on risk exposures in existence at the statement
of financial position date. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2015. The analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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Interest rate risk

The Corporation’s exposure o interest rate risk arises primarily through interest bearing assets. A

reasonable possible change of +/~ 1% has been used, consistent with current trends in interest

rates. The basis will be reviewed annually and amended where there is a structural change in the

level of interest rate volatility. The Corporation's exposure to interest rate risk is set out below.
£'000

=18 1%

Carrying Met

Amount Net Result Equity Result Equity

2015

Cash and cash
equivalents 65,714 {B5T) - 65T -

Currency risk

The Corporation has some foreign currency risk exposure from its investments in the TCorp Hour-
Glass Investment facilities, including the LSCIFT. The Hour-Glass investments in emerging
markets, indexed and actively managed international share sector are denominated in currencies
other than Australian Dollars. The agreement between the Corporation and TCorp requires the
manager to effectively review the currency exposure when it arises.

Other price risk = TCorp Hour-Glass facilities

Exposure to ‘other price risk’ primarily arises through investment in the TCorp Hour-Glass
investmant facilities, including the LSCIFT, which are held for strategic rather than frading
purposes. The Corporation's only direct equity investment is in the LSCIFT. The Corporation holds
units in the following Hour-Glass cash and investment facility trusts:

Facility |Irrmnnnnt Sectors Investment Horizon =L 2015
$'000 $'000

Casgh and money markat
Cash Facility instrumants Up to 1.5 years - 462

|Long Service  |Cash, money market
Corporation instruments, Australian bonds,
Investment listed property, Australian and
Facility Trust international shares

7 yaars and over 1,137,719 999,078
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(e)

The unit price of each facility is equal to the total fair value of the net assets held by the facility
divided by the number of units on issue for that facility. Unit prices are calculated and published
daily.

NESW TCorp as trustee and manager for each of the above facilities is required to act in the best
interest of the unit holders and to administer the trusts in accordance with the trust deeds. As
trustee, TCorp has appointed external managers to manage the performance and rizks of each
facility in accordance with a mandate agreed by the parties. TCorp has also leveraged off internal

expertize to manage certain fixed income assets for the Hour-Glass facilities. A significant portion
of the administration of the facilities iz outsourced to an external custodian.

Investment in the Hour-Glass facilities limits the Corporation's exposure to risk, as it allows
diversification across a pool of funds with different investment horizons and a mix of investments.

NSW TCorp provides sensitivity analysis information for each of the Investment facilities, using
historically based volatility information collected over a ten-year period, quoted at two standard
deviations (i.e. 95% probability). Any change in unit price for the TCorp Hour-Glass investment
facilities impacts directly on Net Result (rather than equity). A reasonably possible change is
based on the percentage change in the wnit price (as advised by TCorp) multiplied by the
redemption value as at 30 June each year for each facility (balance from Hour-Glass statement).

Impact on Profit/Loss
Change in 2016 2015
Unit price $'000 $'000
Hour Glass Investmant — Cash facility +=1% - L
Long Service Corporation Investment Facility
Trust (LSCIFT) +-16% 182,035] -
Long Service Corporation Investment Facility
Trust (LSCIFT) +{=-15% -] 149,862

Fair Value measureament

(i) Fair value compared to carrying amount

Financial instruments are generally recognised at cost, with the exception of the TCorp Hour-Glass
investmeant facilities, which are measured at fair value. The amortised cost of financial instruments

recognized in the statement of financial position approximates the fair value, because of the short-

term nature of many of the financial instruments.

There are no financial instruments where the fair value differs from the carrying amount.

{ii) Fair Value recognised in the statement of financial position

The Corporation uses the following hierarchy for disclosing the fair value of financial instruments
by waluation technique:
= Level 1 - Derived from guoted prices in active markets for identical assets / liabilities

*Level 2 - berived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable directly or
indirecthy.

« Lavel 3 - Derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset / liability mot
baszed on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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2016 2015

Level 1] Lewvel 2 Level 3
$'000] $'000 ml $'000
Financial assets at fair value
TCorp Hour Glass investrment facility - LSCIFT =] 1,137.719| =| 999,078
Total - 1,13?,?1!' -] 999,078

The table above only includes financial assets, as no financial liabilities were measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position.

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year ended 30 June 2016.

The value of the Hour-Glass investment facility is based on the market value of the underlying
assets of the facility.

20. Ewents after the reporting date

The Corporation is not aware of any events that have occurred after balance date which are of
such a significance that they need disclosure or recognition in these financial statements.

End of Audited Financial Accounts
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This financial report covers Long Service Corporation Investment Fund as an individual entity.

The Trustee of Long Service Corporation Investment Fund (ABN 73 631 375 853) is the New South Wales Treasury
Corporation (ABN 99 095 235 825).
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Year ended
30 June 30 June
Notes 2016 2015
$ $
Investment income
Interest income 743 41
Trust distribution income 53,138,668 74,074,886
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (953) -
Net (losses)/gains on financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss 6 (24.114.345) 18.630.413
Total net investment income 29,024,113 92.705.340
Expenses
Trustee fees 13 158,701 -
Expense recovery fees 13 30,882 -
Custody fees 19,468 6,979
Auditor's remuneration 5 - 8,496
Other operating expenses 8,421 22368
Total operating expenses 217.472 37.843
Operating profit 28,806,641 92,667,497
Finance costs attributable to unitholders
Distributions to unitholders (53,766,188) (80,986,313)
Decrease/(increase) in net assets attributable to unitholders 7 24,959,547 (11.681.184)

Profit/(loss) for the year = -
Other comprehensive income - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -

The above Statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Balance sheet

As at 30 June 2016
As at
30 June 30 June
Notes 2016 2015
$ $

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,412,064 48,133
Receivables 9 3,969 1,359
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,132,615,005 998,936,572
Financial assets held for trading 12 834,316 -
Margin accounts 3,056.196 -
Total assets 1,137,921,550 998,986,064
Liabilities

Payables 11 33,247 16,291
Financial liabilities held for trading 12 249,681 -
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders) 282.928 16,291
Net assets attributable to unitholders - liability 7 1,137.638.622 998.969.773

The above Balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Year ended
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
S $

Total equity at the beginning of the financial year
Profit/(loss) for the year - -
Other comprehensive income - =

Total comprehensive income for the year - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners - -

Total equity at the end of the financial year - =

Under Australian Accounting Standards, 'Net assets attributable to unitholders' is classified as a liability rather than equity. As a result,
there was no equity at the start or end of the year.

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of financial instruments held at fair value

through profit or loss

Purchase of financial instruments held at fair value through profit

or loss

Amount (paid to)/received from brokers
Trust distributions received

Interest received

GST received/(paid)

Trustee fees paid

Expense recovery fees paid

Auditor's remuneration paid

Custody fees paid

Payment of other operating expenses

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from applications by unitholders

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash financing and operating activities

Notes

14(a)

14(b)

Year ended
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
$ $
126,605,561 200,333,873
(237,186,597) (277,055,880)
(3,056,196) -
5,342,291 =
380 28
(2,247) 1,231
(127,699) -
(30,882) -
(8,899) (7,737)
(19,468) (6,979)
(13.568) (14.976)
(108,497.324) (76.750.440)
109.862.208 76.800.001
109,862,208 76,800,001
1,364,884 49,561
48,133 (1,428)
(953) -
1,412,064 48,133

The above Statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2016

(continued)

1 General information

This financial report covers Long Service Corporation Investment Fund ("the Fund") as an individual entity.

The Trustee of the Fund is New South Wales Treasury Corporation (ABN 99 095 235 825) (the "Trustee"). The Trustee's registered office is
Level 22, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place, Sydney, NSW 2000.

The Fund aims to achieve a maximum total return by investing in unlisted unit trusts as per the objectives stated in the Hour-Glass Brochure
and in accordance with the provisions of the Fund Constitution.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Trustee on 30 September 2016. The Trustee has the power to amend and reissue
the financial report.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied, unless otherwise stated in the following text.

(a) Basis of preparation

This financial report is a general purpose financial report which have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with applicable
Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations), and the requirements of the Public Finance and
Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015.

The directors have determined that accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet the needs of the unitholders.
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and liabilities except where otherwise stated.

The Balance sheet presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish between current and non current
items. The Fund manages financial assets at fair value through profit or loss based on the economic circumstances at any given point in time,
as well as to meet any liquidity requirements. As such, it is expected that a portion of the portfolio will be realised within 12 months,
however, an estimate of that amount cannot be determined as at balance date. In the case of net assets attributable to unitholders, the units are
redeemed on demand at the unitholder's option. As such, the amount expected to be settled within 12 months cannot be reliably determined.
All other assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled within 12 months. The amounts presented in the financial statements
have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The Fund holds units in other unlisted managed investment funds (refer to Note 13). The Trustee has determined that the Fund does not
control these entities as the Fund does not have power over their relevant activities.

(b) Financial instruments

(i)  Classification
The Fund's investments are categorised as at fair value through profit or loss. They comprise:

. Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition

These include financial assets that are not held for trading purposes and which may be sold. These are investments in unlisted
managed investment funds.

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Fund's documented investment strategy. The Fund's policy is for
the Trustee to evaluate the information about these financial instruments on a fair value basis with other related financial information.

. Financial instruments held for trading

These include derivative financial instruments including futures and forward foreign exchange contracts. The Fund does not designate
any derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2016

(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ii)  Recognition/derecognition

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual agreement (trade date) and
recognises changes in fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities from this date.

Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cashflows from the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii)  Measurement
Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

At initial recognition, the Fund measures a financial asset at its fair value in accordance with AASBI3: Fair Value Measurement.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss'
category are presented in the Statement of comprehensive income within net gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is the
current bid price and the quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current asking price.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques.
Accordingly, there may be a difference between the fair value at initial recognition and amounts determined using a valuation technique. If
such a difference exists, the Fund recognises the difference in profit or loss to reflect a change in factors, including time, that market
participants would consider in setting a price.

Further details on how the fair values of financial instruments are determined are disclosed in Note 3(e).
(iv)  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(¢) Net assets attributable to unitholders

Units are redeemable at the unitholders' option and are therefore classified as financial liabilities. The units can be redeemed at any time for
cash equal to a proportionate share of the Fund's net asset value subject to the terms of the Fund Constitution. The fair value of redeemable
units is measured at the redemption amount that is payable (based on the redemption unit price) at the Balance sheet date if unitholders
exercised their right to put the units back to the Fund. Changes in the value of this financial liability are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income as they arise.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

For the Statement of cash flows presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions and other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified as cash flows from operating activities, as
movements in the fair value of these securities represent the Fund's main income generating activity.

(¢) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

Trust distributions are recognised on an entitlements basis.

(f) Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2016

(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(2) Income tax
Under current legislation, the Fund is not subject to income tax as unitholders are presently entitled to the income of the Fund.

The benefit of any imputation credits and foreign tax paid are passed on to unitholders as their individual circumstances allow for these to be
passed on.

(h) Distributions

In accordance with the Fund Constitution, the Fund distributes income adjusted for amounts determined by the Trustee to unitholders by cash
or reinvestment. The distributions are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as finance costs attributable to unitholders.

(i) Increase/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is included in net assets attributable to unitholders. Movements in net assets attributable to unitholders are
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as finance costs.

(j)  Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates
(the “functional currency”). This is the Australian dollar, which reflects the currency of the economy in which the Fund competes for capital
and is regulated. The Australian dollar is also the Fund’s presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at period end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of gains or losses on securities and derivative financial instruments which is due to changes in foreign
exchange rates from that which is due to changes in the market price of securities. Such fluctuations are included with the net gains or losses
on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

(k)  Due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but
not yet delivered by the end of the year. Trades are recorded on trade date, and normally settled within three business days. A provision for
impairment of amounts due from brokers is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts
due from the relevant broker.

(1) Receivables

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trust distributions. Dividends and trust distributions are accrued when the right
to receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of each reporting period from the time of the last payment in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(e) above. Amounts are generally received within 30 days of being recorded as receivables.

(m) Payables

Payables include liabilities and accrued expenses owing by the Fund which are unpaid as at the end of the reporting period.
(n) Applications and redemptions

Applications for and redemptions of units in the Fund are recorded at the prevailing unit price of the Fund in accordance with the provisions
of the Fund Constitution.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Fund by third parties such as custodial services and investment
management fees has been passed on to the Fund. The Fund qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC), hence investment management
fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income net of the amount of GST
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from
the ATO is included in receivables in the Balance sheet. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross
basis.

(p) Use of estimates

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(q9) Margin accounts

Margin accounts comprise cash held as collateral for derivative transactions. The cash is held by the broker and is only available to meet
margin calls.

(r) New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2016 reporting period. The
Trustee's assessment of the impact of these standards (to the extent relevant to the Fund) and interpretations is set out below:

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (and applicable amendments) (effective from 1 January 2018)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. It has
now also introduced revised rules around hedge accounting and impairment. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2018 but is
available for early adoption. The Trustee does not expect this to have a significant impact on the recognition and measurement of the Fund’s
financial instruments as they are carried at fair value through profit or loss. The derecognition rules have not been changed from the previous
requirements, and the Fund does not apply hedge accounting. AASB 9 also introduces a new impairment model. However, as the Fund’s
investments are all held at fair value through profit or loss, the change in impairment rules will not impact the Fund.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that are expected to have a material impact on the Fund in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

3 Financial risk management

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from the financial instruments it holds. The Trustee is responsible
for managing these risks and does so through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring.

Risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets attributable to unitholders of the Fund from
reasonably foreseeable changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this
basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with
established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by the Trustee. These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market
environment of the Fund, as well as the level of risk that the Fund is willing to accept.

This information is prepared and regularly reported to relevant parties within the Trustee.
As part of its risk management strategy, the Fund may use derivatives to manage certain risk exposures.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or where a
number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentration of risk, the Trustee monitors the Fund's exposures to ensure concentrations of risk remain within
acceptable levels and either reduces exposure or uses derivative instruments to manage the excessive risk concentrations when they arise.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Fund's investment activities are undertaken in accordance with
established mandate limits and investment strategies.

The Fund buys and sells derivatives in the ordinary course of business, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks.
(1) Price risk

The Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which prices in the future are
uncertain. These investments are classified on the Balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of the investments
represents the Fund's maximum price risk. The Fund mitigates price risk by diversifying exposure across a range of investment managers and
markets. Benchmarks are established for each investment manager and the Trustee monitors performance and tracking errors relative to those
benchmarks.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

The Fund may hold monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than the Australian dollar. The Fund is also exposed
to foreign exchange risk through foreign currency assets and liabilities held by its underlying managed investment funds (Hour-Glass
Indexed International Share (Unhedged) Fund, Hour-Glass International Share (Unhedged) Fund, Hour-Glass Listed Property Fund and
Hour-Glass Emerging Market Share Fund) to the extent such exposures remain unhedged. The foreign exchange risk relating to non-
monetary assets and liabilities is a component of equity price risk. Foreign exchange risk arises as the value of monetary securities
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The table below summarises the Fund's assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the Australian dollar.

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
AUD equivalent in exposure by AUD equivalent in exposure by
Assets currency currency
$ $
Euro 20,214 -
British Pounds 110,283 -
Japanese Yen 32,295 -
US Dollars 206,084 -
Other Currencies 17,554 -
386,430 -
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
AUD equivalent in exposure by AUD equivalent in exposure by
Liabilities currency currency
$ $
Euro (1,164) -
Japanese Yen (21,992) -
US Dollars (41,125) -
Other Currencies (174) -
(64.455) 2

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. This risk is primarily measured and managed using duration.

The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk on cash and cash equivalents which is not considered material.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(b) Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Fund’s operating profit and net assets attributable to unitholders to market risk. The
reasonably possible movements in the risk variables have been determined based on the Trustee's best estimates, having regard to a number
of factors, including historical levels of changes in the correlation of the Fund’s investments with the relevant benchmark and market
volatility. However, actual movements in the risk variables may be greater or less than anticipated due to a number of factors, including
unusually large market shocks resulting from changes in the performance of the economies, markets and securities in which the Fund invests.
As a result, historic variations in risk variables are not a definitive indicator of future variations in the risk variables.

Impact on operating profit/net assets attributable to unitholders

Price risk Foreign exchange risk
-16% +16% -12% +12%
S $ $ $
30 June 2016 (181,309,419) 181,309,419 (6,091) 6,091
-15% +15% -% +%
$ $ $ S
30 June 2015 (149,840,486) 149,840,486 - B

The foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis above is calculated soley on monetary assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange risk relating
to non-monetary assets and liabilities (financial assets and financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss) is a component of equity
price risk and is therefore included in the price risk sensitivity analysis above.

(¢) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss.

The Fund's maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial asset, other than
equity and derivative financial instruments, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the Balance sheet. This does not represent
the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values, but best represents the current maximum exposure
at the reporting date.

In relation to equity and derivative financial instruments, credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their
obligations under the contract or arrangement. The risk associated with these contracts is minimised by undertaking transactions with
counterparties on recognised exchanges, or where applicable ensuring that transactions are undertaken with a large number of counterparties.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values.

There are no financial assets that are past due or impaired, or would otherwise be past due or impaired except for the terms having been
renegotiated.

The Fund may obtain, or provide, collateral to support amounts due under derivative transactions with certain counterparties. These
arrangements are agreed between the Fund and each counterparty and take the form of annexures to the standard industry agreement
governing the underlying derivative transaction.

The exposure to credit risk for cash and cash equivalents are low as all counterparties have a rating of A-1 (as determined by Standard
and Poor’s) or higher.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Cash flow risk is
the risk that future cash flows associated with financial instruments will fluctuate in amount or timing.

These risks are controlled through the Fund's investment in financial instruments, which under normal market conditions are readily
convertible to cash. In addition, the Fund maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet normal operating requirements.

Financial liabilities of the Fund comprise trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments and net assets attributable to unitholders.
Trade and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typically settled within 30 days of the obligation
arising. Payment obligations in respect of derivative financial instruments arise and are met pursuant to their terms of issue.

Note 7 sets out how the Trustee manages net assets attributable to unitholders.

The table below details the Fund's non-derivative financial liabilities into the relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 1 month 1-6 months 6-12 months Over 12 months
$ $ $ $
At 30 June 2016
Payables 33,247 - - -
Net assets attributable to unitholders 1,137.638.622 - - -
1,137.671.869 - - -
Less than 1 month 1-6 months 6-12 months Over 12 months
$ $ $ $
At 30 June 2015
Payables 16,291 - - -
Net assets attributable to unitholders 969,720,722 - - 29,249,051
969,737,013 - - 29.249.051

The table below analyses the Fund's derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period to the
contractual maturity date at the year end date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the estimated undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 1 1-6 months 6-12 months Over 12 months Total
month
$ $ $ $ $

At 30 June 2016
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Inflows 34,631,455 - - - 34,631,455
(Outflows) (34,592,694) - - - (34,592,694)
Equity Futures
Inflows 1,300 554,426 - - 555,726
(Outflows) - (35,284) - - (35,284)
Interest rate futures
Inflows - 13,136 - - 13.136

40,061 532,278 - - 572,339
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
(¢)  Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Fund's assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at fair value excluding any transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. Subsequent to initial recognition, all instruments held at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

° Fair value in an active market

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the Balance sheet date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial
liabilities is the current asking price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an investment market if quoted prices are readily
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

° Fair value in an inactive or unquoted market

The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange traded is estimated at the amount that the Fund would receive or pay to terminate the
contract at the Balance sheet date taking into account current market conditions (volatility and appropriate yield curves) and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparties. The fair value of a forward contract is determined as a net present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at appropriate market rates as at the valuation date.

(f)  Fair value measurement

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the subjectivity of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis of the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment
based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable" requires significant judgement by the Trustee. The Trustee considers observable data to
be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable.

Investments in unlisted managed investment funds are recorded at the redemption value per unit as reported by the managers of such funds.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (continued)

The table below sets out the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) measured at fair value according to the fair value hierarchy:

30 June 2016

Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading:
Derivatives

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:

Unlisted managed investment funds
Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading:
Derivatives
Total

30 June 2015

Financial assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:

Unlisted managed investment funds
Total

Level 1 Level 2
$ $

568,862 265,454

1,132.615.005

568,862 1,132,880,459

Level 3 Total
$ $

- 834,316

- 1.132.615.005

1,133.449.321

(35.284) (214.397) - (249.681)
(35.284) (214.397) - (249.681)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $
- 998.936.572 - 998.936.572

- 998,936,572

- 998.936.572

The Fund recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has
occurred. There were no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Valuation techniques

The valuation techniques and inputs used in measuring the fair value of financial assets and liabilities are outlined in Note 2(b).
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4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are permitted to be offset and the net amount reported in the Balance sheet where the Fund currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Fund enters into derivative transactions governed by master netting arrangements set out in International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) agreements between the Fund and market counterparties. In certain circumstances, such as a credit default, all
outstanding transactions under the ISDA agreement are terminated, the termination value is determined and only a single net amount is
payable to/receivable from a counterparty in settlement of all transactions. The Fund’s ISDA agreements do not currently meet the criteria for
offsetting in the Balance Sheet. This is because the Fund does not currently have a legally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, as
the right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of future events. These amounts have therefore not been offset in the Balance sheet,
but have been presented separately in the following table. The table also presents the gross amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are offset in the Balance sheet. The column “Net amount” shows the impact on the Fund’s Balance sheet if all set-off rights
were exercised.

30 June 2016 Effects of offsetting on the Balance sheet Related amounts not offset
Amounts
Gross Net amounts subject to Financial
amounts set  presented in master instrument
Gross off in the the Balance netting collateral/
amounts Balance sheet sheet arrangements  margins Net amount
$ $ $ $ $ $

Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading

Equity futures 555,726 - 555,726 - - 555,726
Interest rate futures 13,136 - 13,136 - - 13,136
Foreign exchange contracts 265,454 - 265,454 (214,397) - 51,057
Margin account 3,056,196 - 3,056,196 - (23.157) 3,033,039
Total 3.890.512 - 3,890,512 (214.397) (23.157) 3,652,958

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading

Equity futures (35,284) - (35,284) - 23,157 (12,127)
Foreign exchange contracts (214.397) - (214.397) 214,397 - -
Total (249.681) - (249.681) 214,397 23.157 (12,127)

There were no derivative financial instruments held as at 30 June 2015.

5 Auditor's remuneration

The following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Fund:

Year ended
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
$ $

Audit services
Audit services

Audit of the Financial Statements of the Fund 10,264 8.496
Total remuneration for audit services 10,264 8.496

Auditor's remuneration disclosed is inclusive of GST.

From 1 July 2015, audit fees are being paid for by the Trustee. To cover this and certain other expenses paid by the Trustee on behalf of the
Fund, the Trustee receives expense recovery fees from the Fund as discussed in Note 13.
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6 Net (losses)/gains on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
Net (losses)/gains recognised in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss:
Year ended
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
Financial instruments $ $
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments held for trading 906,378 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments designated as at fair value through
(profit)/loss (25,020,723) 18.630.413
Total net (losses)/gains on financial instruments held at fair value through
(profit)/loss (24.114,345) 18.630.413
7 Net assets attributable to unitholders
Movements in the number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:
Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2016 2015 2016 2015
Units Units $ $

Opening balance 1,057,058,024 896,298,673 998,969,773 829,502,275
Applications 113,580,470 75,184,515 109,862,208 76,800,001
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions 57,986,442 85,574,836 53,766,188 80,986,313
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
unitholders - - (24.959.547) 11,681,184
Closing balance 1,228,624.936 1,057.058.024 1,137.638.622 998.969.773

As stipulated in the Fund Constitution, each unit represents a right to an equal undivided interest in the Fund and does not extend to a right

to the underlying assets in the Fund.

Capital risk management

The Fund considers its net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, notwithstanding 'net assets attributable to unitholders' is classified as
a financial liability. Net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily

applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

Daily applications and redemptions are reviewed relative to the liquidity of the Fund's underlying assets on a daily basis by the Trustee.
Under the terms of the Fund Constitution, the Trustee has the discretion to reject an application for units and may defer or adjust a

redemption of units in certain circumstances.

8 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
$ )
Cash at bank 1,412,064 48.133
1,412,064 48.133
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9 Receivables

As at
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
$ $
Interest receivable 376 13
GST receivable 3,593 1,346
3,969 1,359
10 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
As at
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
Fair value Fair value
$ $
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Unlisted managed investment funds 1.132.615.005 998.936.572
Total designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,132,615.005 998.936.572
11 Payables
As at
30 June 30 June
2016 2015
$ $
Trustee fees payable 31,002 -
Expense recovery fees payable 2,245 -
Audit fees payable - 8,899
Other expenses payable - 7.392
33.247 16.291
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12 Financial instruments held for trading

In the normal course of business, the Fund may enter into transactions in various derivative financial instruments. A derivative is a
financial instrument or other contract which is settled at a future date whose value changes in response to a change in a specified interest
rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other
variable.

Derivative financial instruments require no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for
other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

Derivative transactions include a wide assortment of instruments, such as forwards, futures and options. Derivatives are considered to be
part of the investment process. The use of derivatives is an essential part of the Fund’s portfolio management. Derivatives are not
managed in isolation. Consequently, the use of derivatives is multifaceted and includes:

° hedging to protect an asset or liability of the Fund against a fluctuation in market values or to reduce volatility

. a substitution for trading of physical securities

. adjusting asset exposures within the parameters set in the investment strategy, and adjusting the duration of fixed interest portfolios
or the weighted average maturity of cash portfolios.

While derivatives are used for trading purposes, they are not used to gear (leverage) the Fund. Gearing a portfolio would occur if the level
of exposure to the markets exceeds the underlying value of the Fund's net assets attributable to unitholders.

The Fund holds the following derivative instruments:
(a) Futures

Futures are contractual obligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at a specified price established in an organised
market. The futures contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable securities. Changes in futures contracts’ values are usually settled
net daily with the exchange. Interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based on changes in interest
rates at a future date at a specified price, established in an organised financial market. Equity futures are contractual obligations to receive
or pay a net amount based on changes in underlying securities at a future date at a specified price, established in an organised financial
market.

(b)  Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts are primarily used by the Fund to hedge against foreign currency exchange rate risks on its non
Australian dollar denominated securities. The Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fixed quantity of foreign currency for an agreed upon
price on an agreed future date. Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the prevailing bid price at the reporting date. The Fund
recognises a gain or loss equal to the change in fair value at the reporting date.

The Fund's derivative financial instruments at year end are detailed below:

30 June 2016
Fair Value
Contract/notional Assets Liabilities
$ $ $

Equity futures 42,654,183 555,726 (35,284)
Interest rate futures 3,512,493 13,136 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 34,631,455 265,454 (214.397)

834.316 (249.681)

There were no derivative financial instruments held as at 30 June 2015.

An overview of the risk exposures relating to derivatives is included in Note 3.
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13 Related party transactions

Trustee

The Trustee of Long Service Corporation Investment Fund is New South Wales Treasury Corporation. Accordingly, transactions with entities

related to the Trustee are disclosed below.

Key management personnel

Directors

Key management personnel includes persons who were directors of the Trustee at any time during the financial year or since the end of the year

end and up to the date of this report:

P W Chronican BCom(Hons), MBA(Dist)
R Whitfield BCom, Grad Dip Fin, AMP (Harvard)

P Gaetjens BA(Hons) Grad Dip Prof Acc
T Spencer BEc(Hons)

S B Constant BEc, Blaw(Hons)

1 Atlas B Juris(Hons), LLB(Hons), LLM
Hon A R Stockdale AO, BA, LLB

P H Warne BA, FAICD

K Schott AO, BA(Hons), MA, DPhil

S Doyle BA

S W Knight BA, FAICD

P A Smith CA, FFin, BCom

D M Deverall BE(Hons), MBA

Key management personnel compensation

Chairperson and Non-executive Director (Appointed Chairperson from 16 June 2016)
Deputy Chairperson and Representative of NSW Treasury (Appointed 13 July 2015,
Chairperson from 13 July 2015 to 15 June 2016, Appointed Deputy Chairperson from 16
June 2016)

Chairperson and Representative of NSW Treasury (Resigned 3 July 2015)
Representative of NSW Treasury

(Chairperson from 4 to 12 July 2015, Deputy Chairperson from 13 July 2015 to 15 June
2016, Resigned 5 August 2016)

Representative of NSW Treasury (Appointed 22 August 2016)

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director (Appointed 28 April 2016)

Chief Executive (Resigned 31 October 2015)

Acting Chief Executive (Appointed 1 November 2015 to 4 February 2016)

Chief Executive (Appointed 5 February 2016)

Key management personnel compensation is paid by the Trustee. Payments made from the Fund to the Trustee do not include any amounts
directly attributable to the compensation of key management personnel.

Key management personnel loan disclosures

The Fund has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly, any loans to the key management personnel or their personally related

entities at any time during the reporting period.

Other transactions

During their period of appointment as directors of the Trustee, R Whitfield and P Gaetjens also held the position of Chief Executive Officer
of Long Service Corporation. Long Service Corporation holds 100% of the units in the Fund and is the controlling entity.

Apart from those details disclosed in this note, no key management personnel have entered into a material contract with the Fund during the
financial year and there were no material contracts involving key management personnel's interests existing at year end.
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13 Related party transactions (continued)

Trustee fees and other transactions

Under the terms of the Fund Constitution for the Fund, the Trustee is entitled to receive trustee fees monthly. In prior years, these fees were
solely being paid from the Fund’s underlying investments. From 1 July 2015, a portion of these fees is now being paid directly from the
Fund.

From 1 July 2015, the Trustee pays certain expenses incurred for services provided to the Fund. To cover these costs, the Trustee receives
expense recovery fees from the Fund.

Transactions with related parties have taken place at arm's length and in the ordinary course of business. The transactions during the year
and amounts at year end between the Fund and the Trustee were as follows:

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
$ $
Expense recovery fees for the year 30,882 -
Trustee fees for the year 158,701 -
Aggregate amounts payable to the Trustee at the reporting date 33,247 -

Investments

Details of related parties investments held by the Fund, which New South Wales Treasury Corporation acts as Trustee, are set out below:

Distributions received
Fair value of investment Interest held or receivable during year
$ % $

30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Hour-Glass Indexed International

Share (Unhedged) Fund 66,177,492 66,134,254 13.81 13.72 1,827,631 1,347,240
Hour-Glass International Share

(Unhedged) Fund 187,028,594 172,740,978 5.66 5.59 20,349,482 26,289,400
Hour-Glass Listed Property Fund 62,219,879 46,706,766 22.36 18.73 60,160 80,003
Hour-Glass Australian Share Fund 258,502,716 245,948,434 8.05 7.81 12,694,398 24,410,701
Hour-Glass Indexed Australian

Share Fund 33,399,825 33,221,244 10.94 10.85 1,515,214 4,012,098
Hour-Glass Australian Bond Fund 112,487,327 106,326,422 25.42 25.65 6,300,164 6,469,963
Hour-Glass Liquidity Cash Fund 182,281,252 123,431,584 13.25 6.65 2,999,734 3,376,417
Hour-Glass Strategic Cash Fund 128,320,823 125,103,416 10.22 10.61 3,401,039 3,350,359
Hour-Glass Emerging Market Share

Fund 53,941,693 50,074,423 6.57 5.55 1,638,720 3,436,165
Hour-Glass Unlisted Property Fund 48,255,404 29,249,051 3.66 2.62 2,352,127 1,302,540
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2016
(continued)
14 Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash outflow from operating activities
Year ended
30 June 30 June
2016 2015

$ $
(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year - -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to unitholders (24,959,547) 11,681,184
Distributions to unitholders 53,766,188 80,986,313
Proceeds from sale of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 126,605,561 200,333,873
Purchase of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss (237,186,597) (277,055,880)
Net losses/(gains) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 24,114,345 (18,630,413)
Investment income reinvested (47,796,377) (74,074,886)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) 953 -
Net change in deposits held with brokers (3,056,196) -
Net change in receivables (2,610) 1,218
Net change in payables 16,956 8,151
Net cash outflow from operating activities (108,497.324) (76.750.440)
(b) Non-cash financing and operating activities
During the year, the following distribution payments were satisfied by the issue of
units under the distribution reinvestment plan 53,766,188 80,986,313
During the year, the following acquisitions were satisfied by participation in
dividend and distribution reinvestment plans 47,796.377 74,074,886

101,562.565 155.061.199

15 Events occurring after the reporting period

No significant events have occurred since the reporting period which would impact on the financial position of the Fund disclosed in the
Balance sheet as at 30 June 2016 or on the results and cash flows of the Fund for the year ended on that date.

16 Contingent assets and liabilities and commitments

There are no outstanding contingent assets, liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015.
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Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
Statement by the Trustee
30 June 2016

Statement by the Trustee

In the opinion of the directors of the Trustee
(a) The financial statements and notes of the Fund are in accordance with the requirements of the Fund Constitution, and the
requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015, and:

(i) are properly drawn up so as to present fairly the Fund's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its performance, as
represented by the results of its operations, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
(b) There are reasonable grounds to believe the Fund will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.
M 4/\///
/ v
Director
Sydney

30 September 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Long Service Corporation Investment Fund

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Long Service Corporation Investment Fund
(the Fund), which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 30 June 2016, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards

. are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015

. are in accordance with the requirements of the Fund’s constitution.
My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report.

| am independent of the Fund in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110
‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ (the Code).

| have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The PF&A Act further promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies, but precluding the provision

of non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t029275 7101 | f02 92757179 | e mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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The Trustee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Fund’s Trustee, New South Wales Treasury Corporation are responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors must assess the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern unless the Fund will be dissolved by an Act of Parliament or otherwise cease operations. The
assessment must include, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on the financial
statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx.

The description forms part of my auditor’s report.
My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Fund carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented.

‘ \WL\» : @CTX

yetun}'
Director, Financial Audit Services

30 September 2016
SYDNEY
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Appendix 1

CONSUMER RESPONSE

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

There were no complaints received relating to staff performance. One complaint was
received on the content of a reminder letter issued to an employer, one complaint received on
the worker registration process and one complaint received on the requirement to pay a
building and construction levy. There were four complaints on the unavailability of the
Corporation’s Helpline during several periods of the year and one complaint on the
availability of the website. One customer offered a suggestion to improve the tax agent portal.

CUSTOMER COMPLIMENTS

In the same period 16 compliments were received on the helpfulness and professionalism of
Corporation staff.

Appendix 2

LEGISLATIVE CHANGE

There were no changes during the year to the Long Service Corporation Act 2010, the Building
and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act 1986 or the Contract Cleaning Industry
(Portable Long Service Leave Scheme) Act 2010 or to the regulations.
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Appendix 3

OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) ACT 2009

Government Information (Public Access) Act — Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Clause 7A: Details of the review carried out by the agency under section 7 (3) of the Act during the reporting year and the details

of any information made publicly available by the agency as a result of the review

Reviews carried out by the agency

Information made publicly available by the agency

No

No

Clause 7B: The total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting year (including withdrawn

applications but not including invalid applications)

Total number of applications received

Clause 7C: The total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting year that the agency refused
either wholly or partly, because the application was for the disclosure of information refered to in Schedule 1 to the Act
(information for which there is conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure)

Number of Applications
Wholl Partl Total
Refused o any e
0 0 0
% of Total 0% 0%
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION ABOUT ACCESS APPLICATIONS - CLAUSE 7(D) AND SCHEDULE 2

Government Information (Public Access) Act — Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Schedule 2 Statistical information about access applications to be included in annual report

Table A: Number of applications by type of applicant and outcome*

Refuse to
Access | Access | Access Information Information| Refuse to |Confirm/Deny| Aoplication % of
Granted | Granted | Refused not Held Already | Deal with whether Wp':fh drawn Total T:Jtal
in Full in Part in Full Available |Application|information is
held
Media 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Members of
. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Parliament
Private sector | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
business
Not for profit
organisations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
or community
groups
Members of
the public (b
public (by 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1| 100%
legal
representative)
Members of
the public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
(other)
Total 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
% of Total 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

* More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access application. If so, a recording must be made in relation
to each such decision. This also applies to Table B.
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Government Information (Public Access) Act — Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Table B: Number of applications by type of ap,

plication and outcome*

Refuse to
Access | Access | Access Information Information| Refuse to |Confirm/Deny Application % of
Granted | Granted | Refused Already | Deal with whether . Total
i ] ) not Held ) N A | Withdrawn Total
in Full in Part in Full Available |Application [information is
held
Personal
information 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 100%
applications™
Access
applications
(otherthan | =, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o | o%
personal
information
applications)
Access
applications
that are
partly
personal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
information
applications
and partly
other
Total 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
% of Total 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

* A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in clause 4 of Schedule 4 to
the Act) about the applicant (the applicant being an individual).
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Government Information (Public Access) Act — Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Table C: Invalid applications

Reason for invalidity No of applications % of Total
Application does not comply with formal requirements (section 41 of the Act) 0 0%
Application is for excluded information of the agency (section 43 of the Act) 0 0%
Application contravenes restraint order (section 110 of the Act) 0 0%
Total number of invalid applications received 0 0%
Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications 0 0%

Table D: Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure: matters listed in Schedule 1 of Act

Number of times

consideration used* % of Total

Overriding secrecy laws 0 0%
Cabinet information 0 0%
Executive Council information 0 0%
Contempt 0 0%
Legal professional privilege 0 0%
Excluded information 0 0%
Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety 0 0%
Transport safety 0 0%
Adoption 0 0%
Care and protection of children 0 0%
Ministerial code of conduct 0 0%
Aboriginal and environmental heritage 0 0%
Total 0

*More than one public interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular access application and if so, each such

consideration is to be recorded (but only once per application). This also applies in relation to Table E
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Government Information (Public Access) Act = Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Table E: Other public interest considerations against disclosure: matters listed in table to section 14 of Act

Number of times

consideration used* % of Total

Responsible and effective government 0 0%
Law enforcement and security 0 0%
Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice 0 0%
Business interests of agencies and other persons 0 0%
Environment, culture, economy and general matters 0 0%
Secrecy provisions 0 0%
Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation 0 0%
Total 0
Table F: Timeliness

Number of applications* % of Total
Decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus any extensions) 1 100%
Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant) 0 0%
Not decided within time (deemed refusal) 0 0%
Total 1
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Government Information (Public Access) Act — Annual Report for Agency Long Service Corporation

Table G: Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the Act (by t

pe of review and outcome)

Decision varied | Decision upheld Total % of Total
Internal review 0 0 0 0%
Review by Information Commissioner* 0 0 0 0%
2::;2?1' ;2\’;?,; :tjllowing recommendation under 0 0 0 0%
Review by NCAT 0 0 0 0%
Total 0 0
% of Total 0% 0%

*The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but can make recommendations to the original
decision-maker. The data in this case indicates that a recommendation to vary or uphold the original decision has been made by

the Information Commissioner.

Table H: Applications for review under Part 5 of the Act (by type of applicant)

Number of appllcatlons % of Total
for review
Applications by access applicants 0 0%
Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access 0 0%
application relates (see section 54 of the Act) ;
Total 0
Table I: Applications transferred to other agencies.
Number of applications % of Total
transferred
Agency-Initiated Transfers 0 0%
Applicant - Initiated Transfers 0 0%
Total 0
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Appendix 4

PRIVACY AND PERSONAL INFORMATION PROTECTION ACT

In accordance with section 33 of the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998, a
Privacy Management Plan is in place and a copy provided to the Privacy Commissioner. No
applications have been received for internal review of conduct under Part 5 of the Privacy and
Personal Information Protection Act. A statement of data collected, data source, purposes and
authority for collection of personal data was also supplied to the Privacy Commissioner.

Induction of new staff has included training on policies and guidelines for protecting personal
information and privacy, particularly on the Helpline.

The Corporation’s formal complaint mechanism encompasses situations where customers
have grievances in respect of requirements of the Privacy and Personal Information Protection
Act. Customers in this position may lodge formal grievances and these are then addressed in
accordance with the legislative requirements.

Appendix 5

WOMEN’S ACTION PLAN

The Corporation’s legislation requires delivery of long service benefits to the building and
construction and contract cleaning industries in NSW. Benefits are equally available to male
and female workers. There are provisions to help preserve a woman’s registration when
pregnant.

The Corporation has continued its flexible work time agreement which offers a wide
bandwidth, no core time and provides for up to three flexi-days in a six week period to assist
staff in meeting their work and family commitments. Nine female officers worked in part-time
leave without pay arrangements to assist in returning to work after maternity leave or to
assist with parental responsibilities.

The Corporation has two female staff that form part of the Senior Management Team.
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Appendix 6

HUMAN RESOURCES

Staff are employees of NSW Treasury. The Corporation is transitioning away from support
services provided by Safety, Return to Work and Support to NSW Treasury. This year saw the
Corporation fully implement its in house Payroll system and transition its HR services
including recruitment, employee relations, training and development and all policy matters to
NSW Treasury. The Corporation continued its work towards transitioning all IT
infrastructures aligning it with GovDC.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Staff are employees of NSW Treasury. During the 2015-16 reporting period the Human
Capital Management System for online staff performance review was implemented. The
Performance and Development Planning (PDP) process provides staff with the tools to
manage their performance and their career. It also provides teams, groups and our wider
organisation with a consistent approach so that everyone within LSC and Treasury knows
what is expected and enables them to work collaboratively to achieve outstanding results.

Staff had access to a variety of online training offered by NSW Treasury as well as external
training. Study leave is also available for appropriate courses.

Staff training courses undertaken throughout the year include Leading with Emotional
Intelligence, Interpersonal Communication Skills, Writing Complex Documents, Produce
Spreadsheets and Conduct Outbound Customer Contact

STAFFING STATISTICS
COMPARISON OF STAFF LEVELS CHIEF AND SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
2016 2015

BAND FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE
Band 4 (Secretary) 0 0 0 0
Band 3 (Deputy Secretary) 0 0 0 0
Band 2 (Executive Director) 0 0 0 0
Band 1/Senior Officer (Director) 0 2 0 2

0 2 0 2
TOTALS 2 2

STAFFING STATISTICS

COMPARISON OF STAFF LEVELS

Average Remuneration
BAND RANGE $ 2016 $ 2015 $
Band 4 (Secretary) 441,201 to 509,750 n/a n/a
Band 3 (Deputy Secretary) 313,051 to 441,200 n/a n/a
Band 2 (Executive Director) 248,851 to 313,050 n/a n/a
Band 1/Senior Officer (Director) 174,500 to 248,850 195,874 186,469

6.32% of the Corporation’s employee related expenditure in 2016 was related to senior
executives and senior officers, compared with 5.2% in 2015.
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CHIEF AND SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

2016 2015 2014 2013
SES Officers/Senior Officers 2 2 2 2
Number of Female SES officer - - - -
Number of SES officers at
Level 5 and above ) ) ) )
COMPARISON OF STAFF LEVELS

FTE 2016 FTE 2015 FTE 2014 FTE 2013

Temporary Contracting Staff 5 1 1 6.4
Employees covered by the
Crown Employees Award 64.62 66 65.57 60.7
Total 69.62 67 66.57 67.1

Staff are employees of NSW Treasury.
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Appendix 7

Consultants
Costing $50,000 or more

Finance and Accounting/Tax

Project

Amount (Excl gst) $

PricewaterhouseCoopers Quarterly Investment Report for 80,580
Securities Ltd both Schemes @ 4 QTRS +
Strategy Review and Advice
Professional Financial Solutions | Actuarial valuation of BCI as at 53, 410
Pty Ltd 30/6/15, Provide accounting
disclosure figures based on yr15,
Presentation for yr15 figure,
Stochastic Model yr 15
Deloitte Access Economics Impact of changes to long service 79,639
leave
Heather Miles Consulting Improving staff engagement/culture 175,072
Riteway Solutions Group Pty Ltd | GovDC 229,397
Subtotal 618,098
Consultants Project Amount (Excl gst) $
Costing less than $50,000
Finance and Accounting/Tax
Procure Group Pty Ltd Provision of Probity Advisory 1,175
service for GOVDC
Frontier Software Pty Ltd Chris payroll End of FY 1,149
Dialog Information Technology Feasibility of Microsoft Dynamics 10,540
AX for Long Service Corporation
Professional Financial Solution Actuarial reports on BCl and CCl 35,012
scheme, Actuarial update for CCI
Scheme as at 30 June 2016,
Actuarial valuation of long service
leave liabilities for LSC employees,
Actuarial update for BCl Scheme as
at 30 June 2016 and actuarial
review of PFS's triennial valuation
report on BCI & CCl schemes
KPMG Accounting advice and disclosure
assistance 27,665
Subtotal 75,541
Total 693,639
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Appendix 8

OTHER DISCLOSURES

The Corporation has no subsidiaries and has not entered into joint ventures or partnerships
with other organisations. The Corporation does not own real estate property nor was any real
estate property disposed of during the year.

Officers made no overseas visits during the year.

No research or development programs were undertaken.

There were no grants made to non government community organisations.

Statistical Information on Public Interest Disclosures

July 2015 -June 2016
Number of public officials who made PIDs 0

Number of PIDs received 0
Of PIDs received, number primarily about:

Corrupt conduct

Maladministration

Serious and substantial waste

Government information contravention

Local government pecuniary interest contravention
Number of PIDs finalised

o O O © © O

Between July 2015 and June 2016 there were no public interest disclosures made by Long
Service Corporation staff.

As a member of the NSW Treasury cluster the Corporation adopted Treasury’s “Public
Interest Disclosures Internal Reporting Policy”.

EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REPORT PROVISION

As a small statutory body the Corporation need only report on a triennial basis in relation to:

» Workforce Diversity

» Multicultural Policies and Services Program
» Occupational Health and Safety

» Waste

These areas were reported in 2014/2015.
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Appendix 9

CREDIT CARD CERTIFICATION

In accordance with Treasury’s Direction 205.01-205.08, the Long Service Corporation
certifies that corporate credit cards used by officers on behalf of the Long Service Corporation
have been in accordance with the established government requirements, Premier’s
Memorandum and Treasurer’s Directions.

The Long Service Corporation has three credit cards issued with a total limit of $40,000.
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Appendix 10

STATUTORY REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Requirement

Reference

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders

Not Applicable — Exemptions pg 100

Access Details

02

Agreements with the Community Relations Commission

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Aims and Objectives

5-7

Annual Report production costs and details 02
Budgets 28
Charter 05
Consultants 99
Consumer Response 89
Credit Card Certification 101
Digital Information Security Policy Compliance Attestation Statement 20

Disability Inclusion Action Plan

Not Applicable — Exemptions pg 100

Disclosure of Controlled Entities

Not Applicable

Economic and other factors affecting achievement of operational objectives

8, 11

Financial Statements

24

Funds granted to non-government community organisations

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009

90 - 95

Human Resources

97

Identification of audited financial statements

26 - 87

Implementation of price determination

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy Attestation

19

Investment performance

22

Land disposal

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Legal Change

89

Letter of Submission to the Minister for Industrial Relations 03
Liability management performance 46
Management and Activities 5-15
Management and Structure 9-10

Multicultural Policies and Services Program

Not Applicable — Exemptions pg 100

Occupational Health and Safety

Not Applicable — Exemptions pg 100

Payment of accounts

23

Performance and numbers of senior executives

97

Privacy and Personal Information

96

Promotion

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Public Interest Disclosures

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Requirements arising from employment arrangements

Refer to Notes to the Financial
Statements1(i) (iv)

Research and development

Not Applicable — Other disclosures pg 100

Risk management and insurance activities

16

Summary Review of Operations

5-11

Time for Payment of Accounts

Page 23

Workforce Diversity

Not Applicable — Exemptions pg 100
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